AGENDA FOR THE MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
January 14, 2014
Immediately following the 6:00 pm meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118,

This meeting will be available for videoconferencing at Downieville School, 130 School Street, Downieville, CA
In the case of a fechnological difficulty at either school site, videoconferencing will not be available.

Any individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications including auxifiary aids and services in order fo
participate in the Board meeting should contact the Superintendent or designee in writing.

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made available at
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, 109 Beckwith Road, Room 3, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with the online agenda at
hitp:/ivww. sierracountyofficeofeducation.org (Government Code 54957.5)

'A. CALL TO ORDER
(Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.)

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. Superintendent’s Report

a. California State Budget for 2014-15
b. Facilities Updates

2. Business Report

a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 7/1/13 to 12/31/13**
b. Fourth Month Enroliments for the 2013-2014 School Year**

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes)
4. SPTA Report (5 minutes)
5. Board Members’ Report (6 minutes)

8. Collective Bargaining Agreement Disclosure™*
This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing board on
the Collective Bargaining Agreements listed on this Agenda as ltems F, 1, 1314-0127 through
1314-131

7. Public Comment —This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing
board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or
not it is listed on the agenda. Five minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty
minutes to each subject matter. {Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3)

a. Current location
h. Videoconference location



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Governing Board Agenda
January 14, 2014

E. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held December 10, 2013**

2. Approval of the bill warrants for the month of December 2013**

3. Approval of Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for quarter ending
December 2013. H is required per Education Code 35186 section (d) that a school
district shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of alf complaints on a
quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and the governing board of the
school district. No complaints regarding textbooks and instructional materials, teacher
vacancy or misassignment or conditions of facilities were filed with Sierra-Plumas Joint
Unified School District during the quarter ending December 2013.

4. Accept notice of resignation from Tammy Muldoon, Insiructional Aide, Loyalton
Elementary, effective January 2, 2013 (**under separate cover)

5. Assignment of Tammy Muldoon, Instructional Aide, 5.0 hours daily, Loyalton
Elementary, effective January 6, 2013; funded by English Language Learner resources

6. Approval of modifications of Superintendent's Goals for 2013-2014 school year™?

F. ACTION ITEMS

1. New Business

1314-0127

1314-0128

1314-0129

1314-0130

1314-0131

1314-0132

1314-0133

1314-0134

1314-0135

Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2012-2013 school year, Sierra-Plumas
Teachers' Association®*

Approval of Compiletion of Bargaining, 2013-2014 school year, Sierra-Plumas
Classified Employees’ Association™*

Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2013-2014 school year, Confidential
Employees”*

Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2013-2014 school year, Administrative
Employees™*

Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2013-2014 school year, Management
Employeesh*

Authorization to fill Instructional Aide position, Loyalton Elementary, 2.20 hours
daily, L.oyalton Elementary; funded by English Language Learner resources (Grant)

Authorization to fill Instructional Aide position, Downievitle Jr/Sr High, 1.75 hours
daily; funded by Title 1 (Grant)

Acceptance of Financial Audit for 2012-2013** (Asquith)

Adoption of the 2013-2014 First Interim Revised Multi Year Projection and
Cashflow/Budget Year 2** (Asquith)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
AGENDA
2



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Governing Board Agenda
January 14, 2014

1314-0136

1314-0137

1314-0138

1314-0139

Approval of Piggyback Consent Form for Apple, Inc., Purchase Orders™**
(Asquith)

Discussion and Possible Authorization for Superintendent to Enter into
an Agreement with CRM Group for Loyalton High School Paving Project™ (Grant)

Approval of Revision of Board Policy 3513.3, Tobacco Free Schools** {(Grant)

Review and Approval of Administrative Reguiation and Board Policy 6145, Exira
Curricular and Co-Curricular Activities per Education Code §35160.5 (Grant)

G. ADVANCED PLANNING

1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Tuesday, February 11, 2014, at Downieville
School, 130 School Street, Downieville, California, following the 6 pm meeting of the
Sierra County Board of Education.

2. Suggested Agenda items

a. Transportation

b.
C.

H. ADJOURNMENT

**enclosed
*handout

M M A

Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent

AMCounty agenda backup

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
' AGENDA
3



Fiscal01a

Balances through December

Account Object Summary-Balance

Fiscal Year 2012/13

Restricted Accts? =Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Object Description 'L\Bduc:’ps:g:’ R;::;;z? Encumbered Expenditure g‘::::::
Fund 01 - General FD
1100 Teachers Salaries 1,410,527.00 1,388,307.00 550,379.87 837,927.13
1120 Certificated Substitutes 40,368.00 46,420.00 14,230.00 32,190.00
1300 Certificated Superv/Admin Sala 282,602.00 279,449.00 139,724.76 139,724.24
1310 Teacher In Charge/Head Teacher 18,000.00 28,000.00 5,000.00 23,000.00
1900 Other Certificated Salaries 8,749.00 8,574.00 4,287.00 4,287.00
Total for Object 1000 1,760,246.00 1,750,750.00 .00 713,621.63 1,037,128.37
2100 Instructional Aides Salaries 127,399.00 136,017.00 50,432.90 85,584.10
2200 Classified Support Salaries 324,802.00 330,488.00 142,669.16 187,818.84
2220 Classified Support Substitute 18,404.00 18,963.58 559.58-
2300 Classified Sup/Admin Salaries 2,700.00 2,115.00 945.00 1,170.00
2400 Clerical & Office Salaries 267,663.00 239,706.00 121,268.90 118,437.10
2900 Other Classified Salaries 24,905.00 43,090.00 8,211.73 34,878.27
Total for Object 2000 747,469.00 769,820.00 .00 342,491.27 427,328.73
3101 State Teachers Retirement Syst 135,489.00 136,176.00 55,929.48 80,246.52
3102 State Teachers Retirement Syst 825.00 825.00 825.00
3201 Public Employees Retirement Sy 6,095.00 5,605.00 2,263.43 3,341.57
3202 Public Employees Retirement Sy 81,250.00 69,161.00 31,499.58 37,661.42
3212 Pers Pickup-Classified Employe 12,884.00 10,128.00 5,028.00 5,100.00
3311 OASDI-Certificated Positions 3,064.00 3,855.00 1,449.58 2,405.42
3312 OASDI-Classified Positions 44,934.00 46,559.00 21,213.29 25,345.71
3321 Medicare-Certificated Position 25,440.00 23,441.00 9,841.85 13,599.15
3322 Medicare-Classified Positions 10,670.00 11,049.00 4,970.36 6,078.64
3401 Health & Welfare -Certificated 390,571.00 388,263.00 159,387.95 228,875.05
3402 Health & Welfare-Classified Po 183,990.00 146,344.00 88,413.45 57,930.55
3501 State Unemployment Insurance-C 20,699.00 19,215.00 8,995.68 10,219.32
3502 State Unemployement Insurance- 8,229.00 8,469.00 4,282.38 4,186.62
3601 Workers' Compensation Insuranc 99,122.00 91,746.00 37,760.72 53,985.28
3602 Workers' Compensation Insuranc 40,056.00 41,633.00 18,680.85 22,952.15
3701 Retiree Benefits Cert. 121,060.00 121,041.00 17,538.37 103,502.63
3702 Retiree Benefits Class 2,306.74 2,306.74-
3801 PERS Reduction-Certificated 787.00 317.80 469.20
3802 PERS Reduction-Classified 10,686.00 9,302.00 4,368.39 4,933.61
3901 Other Benefits, Certificated P 399.00 418.00 1,172.94 754.94-
3902 Other Benefits, Classified Pos 2,174.00 2,174.00-
Total for Object 3000 1,195,463.00 1,134,017.00 .00 477,594.84 656,422.16
Selection  Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 6, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N,

ESCAPE
Page 1 of 3

006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:17AM


http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3212
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3321
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3322
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3702
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3802
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902

Fiscal01a Account Object Summary-Balance

Balances through December Fiscal Year 2012/13

Object Description 'L\Bduc:’ps:g:’ R;::;;z? Encumbered Expenditure g‘::::::
Fund 01 - General FD (continued)

4100 Textbooks 9,266.00 11,615.00 498.48 1,369.09 9,747.43
4200 Books Other Than Textbooks 914.52 5,370.37 6,284.89-
4300 Materials and Supplies 86,917.00 93,848.00 15,094.79 60,018.82 18,734.39
4350 Vehicle Maint. M&S 6,500.00 6,500.00 5,764.06 553.71 182.23
4400 Non-Capital Equipment (Up to $ 31,639.00 4,561.16 30,819.62 3,741.78-
Total for Object 4000 102,683.00 143,602.00 26,833.01 98,131.61 18,637.38

5100 Subagreement for Services 568,724.00 571,243.00 304,395.42 266,847.58 .00
5200 Travel & Conferences 34,300.00 51,526.00 5,221.27 8,112.52 38,192.21
5300 Dues & Membership 5,447.00 6,707.00 11.90 5,918.32 776.78
5400 Insurance-Fire, liability, etc 51,300.00 51,300.00 47,796.24 3,503.76
5510 Power 91,634.00 91,634.00 61,488.16 24,115.89 6,029.95
5520 Garbage 20,713.00 20,713.00 4,629.00 2,931.00 13,153.00
5530 Water 48,600.00 48,600.00 17,023.12 31,578.35 1.47-
5540 Propane 71,775.00 71,775.00 61,869.58 9,655.42 250.00
5590 Miscellaneous Utilities 15,500.00 15,500.00 11,857.22 3,142.78 500.00
5600 Rentals, Leases & Repairs 30,773.00 30,773.00 4,896.41 19,656.81 6,219.78
5800 Services & Operating Expense 53,000.00 53,000.00 29,383.86 22,416.14 1,200.00
5810 Legal Expenses 316.25 620.25- 304.00
5812 Board Election Expense 3,550.00 3,550.00 3,550.00
5840 Audit Expense 12,000.00 12,000.00 7,750.00 4,750.00 500.00-
5860 Solid Waste Tax 15,613.00 15,613.00 5,430.45 4,450.97 5,731.58
5870 Property Tax - Plioicene Mobil 328.00 328.00 328.00
5890 Miscellaneous Contracts/Servic 346,504.00 309,830.00 295,078.78 143,049.44 128,298.22-
5899 SCOE Interagency Reimburse 14,610.73 1,845.93 16,456.66-
5900 Communications 5,853.00 5,853.00 1,125.00 1,800.82 2,927.18
5910 Telephone-Monthly Service 16,839.00 16,839.00 11,752.62 1,672.55 3,413.83
5920 T Lines 4,800.00 4,800.00 1,488.84 1,211.16 2,100.00
5990 Other Communications 225.00 225.00 225.00
Total for Object 5000 1,397,478.00 1,381,809.00 838,328.61 600,331.67 56,851.28-

6200 BUILDING & IMPROVEMENT OF BUIL 190,742.00 212,350.00 409.38 30,415.43 181,525.19
6400 Equipment 16,733.00 16,732.58 42
Total for Object 6000 190,742.00 229,083.00 409.38 47,148.01 181,525.61

7142 Other Tuition, Excess Cost, an 35,594.00 16,774.00 16,774.00
7310 Direct Support/Indirect Costs .00
7616 Trans fr Gen Fund to Cafeteria 78,281.00 78,281.00 78,281.00

Selection  Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 6, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, ESCAPE

Restricted Accts? =Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N) Page 2 of 3

006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:17AM


http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5510
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5520
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5530
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5540
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5590
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5812
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5840
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5860
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5870
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5910
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5920
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5990
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7142
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64803&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7616

Account Object Summary-Balance

FiscalO1a
Balances through December Fiscal Year 2012/13
Adopted Revised Encumbered = el Account
Balance

Object PEEE Budget Budget
Fund 01 - General FD (continued)
Total for Object 7000 113,875.00 95,055.00 .00 .00 95,055.00
Total for Expense accounts 5,507,956.00 5,504,136.00 865,571.00 2,279,319.03 2,359,245.97
Total for Org 006, Fund 01 and Expense accounts 5,507,956.00 5,504,136.00 865,571.00 2,279,319.03 2,359,245.97

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 6, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, ESCAPE
Page 3 of 3

Selection
Restricted Accts? =Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)
Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:17AM

006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH
2013-2014

Loyalton Loyalton Loyalton Downieville Downieville Sierra Long Term

- Elementay JrHigh Sr High  Elementary JrSr High Pass Cont ISP TOTAL
Ending 20122013 | 162 | 45 | 109 | 30 | 26 | 8 | 12 TT3e2
1st Day 2013-2014 171 43 102 30 21 8 11 386
2013 CBEDS

Month
September 1 167 44 95 29 21 9 14 379
October _ 2 167 44 92 29 21 9 14 3786
November 3 169 43 92 31 21 8 14 378
December 4 166 43 89 31 21 8 15 373
January 5
February 6
March 7
April 8
May 9
June 10

S-PJUSD SDC Washce Cnty
P-1 ADA 351.79 0 13.23
P-2 ADA
Annual ADA

Enrollment difference from June 2013 to
December 13, 2013: -19

2012-2013 P1 ADA = 361.62
| 2012-2013 P2 ADA= 363.89
| 2012 -2013 Annual ADA = 365.21

Prepared by sroberts 1/7/2014 Page 1
doc/Attendance 2013-14/Board Summary 2013-2014



Sierra County Office of Education
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Collective Bargaining Disclosure Statement
January 14, 2014

In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Section 3547.5 and AB 1200
the Superintendent and Chief Business Official of Sierra County Office of Education
(County} and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (District) hereby certify that the
District/County can meet the cost incurred under the 2013-14 bargaining agreements
offset by assumption stated in the 2013-2014 First Interim. The First Interim was
adopted by the Governing Boards at the December 10, 2013, board meeting.

The agreements are between the District/County and the bargaining units listed below:

1. Sierra-Plumas Teachers® Association

2. Sierra-Plumas Classified Employees® Association

3. Confidential Employees

4. Administrative Employees

5. Management Employees

Sierra COE FY 2013-2014 FY 2014-2015 FY 2015-2016

4.5% Salary Inc 2% Salary Inc

Salary $28,500 $34,900 $35,100
Statutory Benefits $ 3,420 $ 4,200 $ 4,215
Total $31,920 $39,100 $39,315

Sierra-Plumas

FY 2013-2014
4.5% Salary Inc

FY 2014-2015
2% Salary Inc

FY 2015-2016

Salary $99,000 $142,000 $151,000
Statutory Benefits $11,800 $ 17,000 $ 18,000
Total $110,800 $157,900 $169,000
Dore gt oo
Rose Asqhith, Business Manager Ddte
A M i / 9 L204¢
Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent Date

C:\UsersiL.ocal Administrato’\DecumentsiNegotiations\2013-14Negotiations\Public Disclosure Stmt SCOE & SPIJUSD Jan. 2014.docx




MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 10, 2013
Downieville School, Downieville, California
This meeting was videoconferenced to Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd.,
Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118

A. CALL TO ORDER
President Mike Moore called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm.
B. ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mr. Mike Moore, President
Mr. Tim Driscoll, Vice President
Ms. Sharon Dryden, Clerk
Ms. Patty Hall, Member
Mr. Allen Wright, Member

ABSENT: None
VACANT: None
C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

WRIGHT/HALL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

D. BOARD ORGANIZATION
ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR 2014

WRIGHT proposed that the Board retain the same officers as in 2013:
1. President — Mike Moore

2. Vice President — Tim Driscoll

3. Clerk — Sharon Dryden

WRIGHT/HALL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Superintendent’s Report
a) Ag Barn Fire Update and Construction Status — The District is gathering bids to repair the barn.
b) Facility Hardship Application Update — The funding was approved; total amount $1,011,161.
c) LHS Track Update — See Sierra County Board of Education Meeting Minutes, Item I, 1.
d) Inter-District Attendance Agreements

2. Business Report
a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 7/1/13 to 11/30/13
b. Third Month Enrollments for the 2013-2014 School Year
c. Business Offices will be closed December 23, 2013, through January 1, 2014
d. Correspondence from SingletonAuman, PC

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting

December 10, 2013

e. Cafeteria Report — Staff has created additional recipes that kids enjoy while still meeting
the nutritional guidelines.

3. STAFF Report — Derek Cooper and Marla Stock reported on activities at their sites.
4. SPTA Report — There was no report.

5. Board Members’ Report
HALL expressed a thank you to Alicia Schofield, Amber Sainsbury, Hillary Lozano and Allison
Baca for their work on the festival.
Downieville Student Council boys did a fine job at the Holiday on Main.

6. Public Comment —This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing board on any
item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or not it is listed on the
agenda. Five minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty minutes to each subject matter.
(Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3)

a.  Current location — Parent: Dr. Grant and Lauriel Wentling have been to Downieville lately and have made a big
impact on the students. When other people are around from the district it means something to the students.
b.  Videoconference location — No comment

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held November 12, 2013
2. Approval of the bill warrants for the month of November 2013
3. Assignment of Loyalton 7-8" Grade Basketball Coaches:
o 7" Grade Boys: Tim Lysen
e 7" Grade Girls: Sheri Roen
« 8" Grade Boys: Bryan Griffin
e 8" Grade Girls: Megan Meschery
4. Assignment of Andrea White, 2013-2014 Loyalton Elementary School Site Tech Coordinator

WRIGHT/HALL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

G. ACTION ITEMS
1. Old Business
1314-104 Administrative Regulation 4361.2 (Management), Personal Leave, revision
DRYDEN/HALL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0
2. New Business
1314-105 Approval of 2014 Sierra County Board of Education/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District meeting calendar

DRYDEN/WRIGHT
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

2 Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes


http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131393/9
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/145075/9

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting

December 10, 2013

1314-106

1314-107

1314-108

1314-109

1314-110

1314-111

1314-112

1314-113

Authorization to fill the following four positions, funded by English Language Learner (ELL):

e .83 FTE (5.0 hours daily) Instructional Aide position, Loyalton Elementary

e .50 FTE (3.0 hours daily) Instructional Aide position, Loyalton High

e .29 FTE (1.75 hours daily) Instructional Aide position, Downieville Elementary
e .25 FTE (1.5 hours daily) Instructional Aide position, Downieville Jr/Sr High
HALL/WRIGHT

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Approval of the Teacher-In-Charge Memorandum of Understanding between the
S-PJUSD and the S-PTA and approval of an employee to the assignment
HALL/ALLEN

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Authorization to process 2012-2013 payroll adjustment for Lynn Fillo, additional
FTE .11688

HALL/WRIGHT

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Technology Task Force Discussion

The latest meeting focused on technology needs of the district as follows:

» LHS:
Chrome Books for Geography class next semester (they will test one before purchasing)
Science -10 to 15 PCs

= Downieville:
Science/Math has a grant request into Sierra Schools Foundation for 10 iPads; the District
will provide 5 more.

= LES:
K-3 requested iPads or tablets to include with their mathbook lab.

Funding sources: County: (restricted) REAP; District: Title 1, ELL, Common Core.

Approval of Sierra County Office of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Goals for Areas of Emphasis for 2013/14 school year

WRIGHT/HALL

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Additions/Changes to Safe School Plan
No action taken

Assignment of two Board Trustees to the Transportation Committee for year 2014
MOORE/HALL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Assignment of two Board Trustees to the Negotiations Committee for year 2014
MOORE/WRIGHT
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting

December 10, 2013

1314-114

1314-115

1314-116

1314-117

1314-118

1314-119

1314-120

1314-121

1314-122

1314-123

1314-124

1314-125

1314-126

Assignment of two Board Trustees to the Facilities Committee for year 2014
DRISCOLL/DRYDEN
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Approval of Specific Waiver: Shared School Site Council, Downieville
WRIGHT/HALL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Authorization for Superintendent to enter into an Annual Services Agreement Between
the SCOE and the S-PJUSD

WRIGHT/HALL

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Authorization for Superintendent to enter into an Annual Services Agreement Between
the S-PJUSD and the SCOE

HALL/WRIGHT

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Approval of Third Amendment to Cooperative Agreement (Sierraville School)
DRYDEN/HALL

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Authorization for Superintendent to endorse Release and Assignment for Western Surety
Company

WRIGHT/DRISCOLL

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Adoption of 2013-2014 Budget and Criteria & Standards Report and First Interim Actuals as of
October 31, 2013

WRIGHT/DRISCOLL

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

Board Policy 0460, Local Control and Accountability Plan, New

Administrative Regulation 0460, Local Control and Accountability Plan, New

Board Policy 0500, Accountability, Revision

Board Policy 3100, Budget, Revision

Administrative Regulation 3100, Budget, Revision

Board Policy 3110, Transfer of Funds, Revision

DRYDEN motioned to adopt 1314-121 through 1314-126 simultaneously. HALL seconded.
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting

December 10, 2013

H. ADVANCED PLANNING

1. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on January 14, 2014, Sierra County Office of
Education, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, California, immediately following the 6:00 pm meeting of
the Sierra County Board of Education.

2. Suggested Agenda items:

Superintendent's Division of Work Hours
Negotiations

LHS Parking Lot

State Budget

cooe

I. ADJOURNMENT

HALL/DRISCOLL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

ADJOURNED at 8:08 pm.

Sharon Dryden, Clerk Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes



ReqPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2013 through 12/31/2013

Check Fund Expensed Check

Check Number . Pay to the Order of Object NI NI
00078914 12/04/2013  ACSA'S FOUNDATION FOR EDUCATIO 01-5200 545.00
00078915 12/04/2013  AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-5600 89.82
00078916 12/04/2013  APPLE INC. 01-4300 299.99
00078917 12/04/2013 JOEL ARMSTRONG 01-5890 20.00
00078918 12/04/2013  AT&T 01-5890 29.56

01-5899 16.43

01-5910 218.33 264.32
00078919 12/04/2013 PENNY BERRY 01-5890 720.00
00078920 12/04/2013  KATIE CAMPBELL 01-5200 28.00
00078921 12/04/2013  CITY OF LOYALTON 01-5530 5,394.15

01-5899 230.58 5,624.73
00078922 12/04/2013 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT 01-3501 120.42

DEPARTMENT

01-3502 50.40 170.82
00078923 12/04/2013 EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INC. 01-4300 227.70
00078924 12/04/2013 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN COMPANY 01-4300 519.47
00078925 12/04/2013  HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-5590 1,712.92
00078926 12/04/2013  IMPACT CONSTR. & EXCAV. 40-6200 2,160.00
00078927 12/04/2013 K 12 MANAGEMENT INC. 01-5890 798.00
00078928 12/04/2013 MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-5600 200.00
00078929 12/04/2013  LIBERTY UTILITIES 01-5510 4,411.17

01-5899 212.76 4,623.93
00078930 12/04/2013 MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-4700 246.99
00078931 12/04/2013 MIKE MOORE 76-9576 610.45
00078932 12/04/2013  OFFICE DEPOT, INC 01-4300 33.00
00078933 12/04/2013  PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-5510 22.03
00078934 12/04/2013  SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 01-5510 289.50
00078935 12/04/2013  SIERRA COUNTY TREASURER 01-5860 3,464.11
00078936 12/04/2013  SIERRA DISPOSAL 01-5520 631.50

01-5899 13.50 645.00
00078937 12/04/2013  SMALL SCHOOL DIST. ASSN. 01-9510 90.00
00078938 12/04/2013 MARLA STOCK 01-5200 36.00
00078939 12/04/2013 SUBURBAN PROPANE 01-5540 2,815.31
00078940 12/04/2013 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-3902 2,306.74

01-9535 13,295.26

76-9576 57,940.36 73,542.36
00078941 12/04/2013 US FOODSERVICE, INC. 13-4300 509.20

13-4700 2,879.55 3,388.75
00078942 12/04/2013  VERIZON WIRELESS 01-5910 227.64
00078943 12/04/2013 WAYNE WHITE WHITE'S BUS 01-5100 112,500.00

01-5890 6,250.00 118,750.00
00078944 12/11/2013 BRECHT'S DATABASE SOLUT, INC 01-5890 2,000.00
00078945 12/11/2013  CALIFORNIA ASSOC. FFA ANGIE MILES, 01-4300 317.50

FINANCIAL SERVICE
00078946 12/11/2013 CALEB DORSEY 01-5200 36.00
00078947 12/11/2013 DOWNIEVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY DIS 01-5530 164.00
00078948 12/11/2013 GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-4700 144.68
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization M
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 4
006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:02AM

District



ReqPay12a

Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2013 through 12/31/2013

Check Fund Expensed Check
Check Number . Pay to the Order of Object NI NI
00078949 12/11/2013  SUSAN GRESSEL 01-5200 36.00
00078950 12/11/2013  CAROLINE GRIFFIN 01-5200 79.16
00078951 12/11/2013 K 12 MANAGEMENT INC. 01-5890 598.00
00078952 12/11/2013  KATIE O'HARA KELLY 01-5890 407.13
00078953 12/11/2013 LES SCHAWB TIRE CENTER 01-4350 1,059.49
00078954 12/11/2013  JANET MCHENRY 01-5200 10.00
00078955 12/11/2013  KIM MCKINNEY 01-5200 36.00
00078956 12/11/2013 MERIWETHER PUBLISHING LTD 01-4300 76.03
Unpaid Sales Tax 4.71- 71.32
00078957 12/11/2013 MEGAN A. MESCHERY 01-5200 10.00
00078958 12/11/2013 MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-4700 302.96
00078959 12/11/2013  NICHOLS, MELBURG & ROSSETTO 35-6200 3,433.74
00078960 12/11/2013 CRM GROUP 35-6200 2,778.00
00078961 12/11/2013  OFFICE DEPOT, INC 01-4300 1,331.25
00078962 12/11/2013  OLIVER WORLDCLASS LABS 01-5890 389.78
00078963 12/11/2013  PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-5510 1,801.09
00078964 12/11/2013  GLEN SABOL 35-6200 720.00
00078965 12/11/2013  SCHOLASTIC INC. CLASSROOM 01-4300 328.35
MAGAZINES
00078966 12/11/2013  SCHOOL PATHWAYS LLC 01-5800 150.00
00078967 12/11/2013  SIERRA DISPOSAL 01-5520 467.50
01-5899 13.50 481.00
00078968 12/11/2013  SIERRA HARDWARE 01-4300 58.44
00078969 12/11/2013  SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 335.10
00078970 12/11/2013  SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 01-4300 250.00
01-5200 68.51 318.51
00078971 12/11/2013  THE SIGN SHOP 01-4300 60.76
00078972 12/11/2013 SUBURBAN PROPANE 01-5540 619.76
00078973 12/11/2013  U.S. BANK 01-4200 102.11
01-4300 347.21
01-5890 12.99 462.31
00078974 12/11/2013 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC. 01-4300 968.12
01-5200 325.16
01-9210 492.31 1,785.59
00078975 12/11/2013  WEST MUSIC 01-4300 121.91
Unpaid Sales Tax 8.51- 113.40
00078976 12/26/2013  AT&T 01-5910 82.44
00078977 12/26/2013 PENNY BERRY 01-5890 720.00
00078978 12/26/2013  CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 01-4300 187.48
01-5899 46.18 233.66
00078979 12/26/2013 DEREK COOPER 01-5200 528.84
00078980 12/26/2013 DOCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES 01-5890 1,170.00
00078981 12/26/2013  BLAINE DONNELLY 01-5200 350.95
01-5899 39.00 389.95
00078982 12/26/2013 GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-4700 149.02
00078983 12/26/2013 W.W. GRAINGER, INC. 01-4300 405.39
00078984 12/26/2013 MERRILL GRANT 01-5200 430.28

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization

of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

ESCAPE
Page 2 of 4

006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School

District

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:02AM



ReqPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2013 through 12/31/2013

Check Fund Expensed Check
Check Number . Pay to the Order of Object NI NI
00078985 12/26/2013 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SRV 01-5600 808.60
00078986 12/26/2013 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN COMPANY 01-4300 103.64
00078987 12/26/2013  HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-5590 961.05
00078988 12/26/2013  INLAND SUPPLY 01-4300 371.97
00078989 12/26/2013  MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-5600 200.00
00078990 12/26/2013 MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-4700 200.46
00078991 12/26/2013 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 28.25
76-9576 610.45 638.70
00078992 12/26/2013  NORTHEASTERN JOINT POWERS 76-9571 33,465.00
AUTHORITY
00078993 12/26/2013  OLIVER WORLDCLASS LABS 01-4400 3,225.15
00078994 12/26/2013  QUILL CORPORATION 01-4300 183.30
00078995 12/26/2013 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 2,028.64
01-5899 39.08 2,067.72
00078996 12/26/2013 REED'S LOCKSMITHING, INC. 01-5600 1,800.43
00078997 12/26/2013  SCHOLASTIC INC. CLASSROOM 01-4200 184.20
MAGAZINES
00078998 12/26/2013 S| & A DEPOSITS 01-5890 1,500.00
00078999 12/26/2013  SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 01-5510 289.50
00079000 12/26/2013  SIERRA HARDWARE 01-4300 35.10
00079001 12/26/2013  SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 134.70
00079002 12/26/2013  SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 01-5890 301.08
00079003 12/26/2013  SMALL SCHOOL DISTRICTS' ASSN 01-5300 600.00
00079004 12/26/2013  SMITH'S TREE SERVICE 01-5600 500.00
00079005 12/26/2013  STAPLES CONTRACT & COMM. 01-4300 139.97
01-5899 46.65 186.62
00079006 12/26/2013 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ACCOUNTING 01-5890 64.00
OFFICE
00079007 12/26/2013 SUBURBAN PROPANE 01-5540 4,578.89
01-5899 900.93 5,479.82
00079008 12/26/2013 TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-5890 106.00
00079009 12/26/2013  TIMBERLINE AUTO PARTS & POWER 01-4350 2.69
EQUIPMENT
00079010 12/26/2013  TIP INC.,PRINTING & GRAPHIX 01-5900 264.45
00079011 12/26/2013  TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-3902 2,306.74
01-9535 13,295.26
76-9576 57,940.36 73,542.36
00079012 12/26/2013  U.S. BANK 01-4200 81.09
01-4300 1,687.22
01-4400 2,188.65
01-5890 12.99
01-5899 65.79 4,035.74
00079013 12/26/2013 US FOODSERVICE, INC. 13-4300 264.10
13-4700 1,787.19 2,051.29
00079014 12/26/2013  VERIZON WIRELESS 01-5910 227.61
00079015 12/26/2013  ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 27.97
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization M
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 4
006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:02AM

District



ReqPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2013 through 12/31/2013

Check Fund Expensed Check
Check Number Date Pay to the Order of Object NI NI
Total Number of Checks 102 380,273.89
Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

01 General Fund 89 214,144.60

13 Cafeteria Fund 7 6,484.15

35 State School Facility Fund 3 6,931.74

40 Special Reserve for Capital Ou 1 2,160.00

76 Warrant/Pass Though (payroll) 5 150,566.62

Total Number of Checks 102 380,287.11

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability 13.22-

Net (Check Amount) 380,273.89

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization ESCAPE
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 4 of 4

006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:02AM

District



SingletonAU manPC John E. Auman, cPa

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E Singleton CPA, MSAcc
N i 4

Qctober 5, 2013

To the Board of Directors
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the .
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District for the year ended June 30, 2013, Professional standards require
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepied auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement lefter. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District are described in Note A to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted during 2012/2013. We noted no transactions entered into
by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The
most sensitive estimate affecting the District’s financial statements was:

Management's estimate of the ultimate collectability of receivables from the State of California is
based on currently known state budgets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the collectability of receivables from the State of California in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure of Concentration of Funding Risk in Note N {o the financial statements.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management
has corrected all such misstatements,

Susanville: Chester:

1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 WWwWWw.sa-cpas.com 530.258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF SIERRA
SIERRAVILLE, CALIFORNIA

AUDIT REPORT
JUNE 30, 2013

SingletonAumanec

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants



Introductory Section



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Audit Report
Far The Year Ended June 30, 2013

T NT

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Repart...

Management's Discussion and Analys.ls {Hequure.d Sa.u:-r.:nli.arnarﬂ:ar!.ur Inforrnatmn}..,..,...,,,,,,...

Basic Financial S

Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position.......cccoereees

Statement of ACtVIIES ..o e csssssrseessens .
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds.....eeeerininnn

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position....eccsssssssmmsmsmeen.

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds...

Reconciliation of the Statement of F-':evenues Expendltures, and Ghanges in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities...

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds..........coeemmnnnn..
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds......coceevenee.
Notes to the Financial Statements ...
Bequired Supplementary Information:

Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

SR NIETA] FUITIO . o1 iesieernssrtrsssesssmesssans ramsessrassamssns sens sessesstns esssrsnsssnssssrnnnesmas nas enmmassnssnsrnnse

Special Revenue Funds:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule:

Cafeteria FUNd........cmmmsimsrmsis s sssess
Capital Projects Funds:

Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

County School Facilities Fund...

Special Reserve FUnd f0r Capital OUNAY PrOJOCtS. ...

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION

Local Education Agency Organization Structure.... s
Schedule of Average Daily ARENAANCE ... ssss

Schedule of Instructional Time...

Sl D EL e and Anah;;“s

Page

—

11
i2

13
14
15
16
17

18
19

32

33

34

36
37
38

Exhibit/Table

Exhibit A-1
Exhibit A-2

Exhibit A-3
Exhibit A-4
Exhibit A-5
Exhibit A-6

Exhibit A-7
Exhibit A-8

Exhibit B-1

Exhibit C-1

Exhibit G-2
Exhibit C-3

Table D-1
Table D-2
Table D-3



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Audit Report
For The Year Ended June 30, 2013
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page Exhibit/Table

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report

With Audited Financial StAat@MENTS.........wmrmmmisnmis s 40 Table D-4
Schedule of Charter Schools... v et eseeseaeeaess s sransmsaenssesssssssnnsnsspenienrs &1 Table D-5
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal ﬁwards e tsessseseesnessssrennennnenesenee 42 Table D-6
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards cererenernnenenines 43

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Gnmphanc& and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.... reereeeseseneeeneennsssssiensennmnnnreseees A
Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal

Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133... reresneeeennsnsnsssssessnnenens 0
Independent Auditor's Report on State Gomphance eeeeeeeeseetsrssesnsesensssssreneesssssasneaenies 48
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .. e sesssesasenene s tsssteeresssnsssspsssssnsananisss D0
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Fmd1ngs ettt sepseasa s saen s sesrenssraess OO

Corrective Action Plan.... T PO PSSO P a7



Financial Section



ﬁSingletonAu manec o € Auman e

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS C|a1|||' E Singlet{}n CPA, MSACE
. 4 ¥

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierraville, California 96126

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District ("the District”) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Fruars;.:nrzunsil:\viiitylr for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from materidl misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinions.
Susanville: Chester:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com FO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020

530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 WWW.sa-cpas.com 530.258.2272 Fax:530.258.2282
1



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial
position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information identified as Required Supplementary
Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, althaugh not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's basic financial statements. The individual nonmajor
fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the
basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and Is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The accompanying other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the State’'s audit guide, Standards and Procedures for Audils of California
K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel, and is also not
a required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information, except for that portion labeled "unaudited" on which we express no opinion, has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary
information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have- also issued our report dated October 5,
5013 on our consideration of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report s to describe the scope of our testing of internal
contro! over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Slerra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

LT e P
A

SingletonAuman PC
Susanville, CA
October 5, 2013



Basic Financial Statements



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2013

INTRODUCTION

Our discussion and analysis of Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District's (District) financial
performance provides an overview of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
5013. It should be read in conjunction with the District's financial statements (including notes and
supplementary information), which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

O Total net position was $7,028,630 at June 30, 2013; this was a decrease of $519,201 from the
prior year. Net asset decreased from the prior year due to the reroof project at Loyalton High
School. :

Overall revenues were $5,079,026 which was less than expenses of $5,598,227 by $519,201.
The general fund reported a fund balance this year of $2,496,080.
The total cost of the District's programs decreased by $205,008 from last year.

Long-term debt increased over prior year by $19,236 due to an increase in Other Post
Employment Benefits liability.

[ R N

o The District's P-2 Average Daily Attendance (ADA) decreased from 383 in fiscal year 2011-
2012 down to 364 ADA in fiscal year 2012-2013, a decrease of 5.3%.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts — management's discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide
a comprehensive overview of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of
statements that present financial information from different perspectives:

o Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first fwo statements, provide both
short-term and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial position.

o Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of the District operations in
more detail. The fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

« Governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in
the short term as well as what remains for future spending.

» Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which
the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources
belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial statements. A comparison of
the district's budget for the year is included.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of
the government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted
for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

4



The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and how it has changed. Net
Position, the difference between the assets and liabllities, is one way to measure the District's financial
health or position.

0 Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position is an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

o To assess the overall health of the District, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors
such as changes in enrcliment, changes in the property tax base, changes in program funding
by the Federal and State governments, and condition of facilities.

The government-wide financial statements of the District include governmental activities. Most of the
District's basic services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and
general administration. Revenue limit funding and federal and state grants finance most of these
activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant
funds-not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devises that the District uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding and spending for particular programs. Some funds are required to be
established by state law and by bond covenants. The Board of Trustees establishes other funds to
control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that the District is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain revenues. The District has two kinds of funds:

0 Governmental funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds,
which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted
to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that help
you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the District's programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additiona! long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional
information at the bottom of the government funds statements that explains the relationship (or
differences) between them.

O Fiduciary funds — the District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others; for the
district, the student body activities fund is an agency fund. The District is responsible for
ensuring that assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by
those to whom the assets belong. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in a
separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position.
We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements because the District
cannot use the assets to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The District's combined net position was $7,028,630 at June 30, 2013. See Table 1.

Many factors contributed to the change in net position. However, one euént last year that stands out
beyond the others is the cost to remove the mold and replace the roof at Loyalton High School. The

project was completed in August 2013, and the State Facility Hardship Apportionment was approved
November 2013. The hardship program will reimburse the District 60% of allowable expenditures.



Table 1:

Met Position .
Governmental Activities Change
2013 2012 2013-2012

Assets

Cash & Investments $ 3,623,230 $ 3,779,106 A4 11%

Accounts Receivable 115,228 210,934 -45.37%

Prepaid Expenses 7,486 11,761 -36.35%

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated

Depreciation 4,725,621 4,197 621 12.58%

TOTAL ASSETS 8,472,266 8,199,422 3.33%
Ligkilities

Accounts Payable 1,228,989 453,299 171.34%

Unearned Revenue 6,062 9,933 -38.97%

Short-Term Debt 191,242 127,338 50.18%

Long-Term Debt 16,353 61,020 -73.20%
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,443,646 651,591 121.56%
Met Assets

Met Investment in Capital Assets 4,725,631 4,191,342 12.75%

Restricted 76,940 47,809 60.93%

Unrestricted {deficit) _ 2,226,059 3,308,680 “32.72%
TOTAL NET POSITION 3 7,028,630 3 7,547,831 £5.88%

Changes in Net Position

The District's total revenues were $5,079,026. A majority of the revenue cames from Revenue Limit and
property taxes (59%). Federal and state aid for specific programs accounted for another 22% of total
revenues. Revenues decreased from the prior year, because of a decrease in federal and local
revenues.The total cost of all programs and services was $5.598,227. The District's expenses are
predominately related to educating and caring for students (67%). Administrative activities accounted for
just 14% of total costs. The remaining expenses were for plant services (maintenance and operations),
ancillary services, and other outgo. Program expenses decreased from the prior year because of lower
instruction compensation and benefits, and equipment.



Table 2:
Changes in Net Position

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants & Contributions
General Revenues
Revenue Limit Sources
Federal Revenues
State Revenues
Local Revenues
TOTAL REVENUES

Program Expenses
Instruction
Instruction-Related Services
Pupil Services
Ancillary Services
General Administration
Plant Services
Other Cutgo

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN NET POSITION

Total Percentage

Governmental Activities Change

2013 2012 2013-2012 -
30,737 3 32,814 -5.33%
709,226 729,750 -2.81%
2,997,031 3,067,795 -2.31%
499 656 624,584 -20.00%

614,960 566,414

227 416 247,048 -7.95%
5,079,028 5,268,405 -3.59%
2,437 304 2,659,413 -8.35%
510,478 528,742 -3.45%
805,171 808,778 -0.20%
50,841 45153 12.60%
794,293 819,274 -3.05%
a71,057 943 247 2.95%
29,083 627 4538.44%
5,698,227 5,803,234 -3.53%
-2.92%

8 5519.201! 3 5534,829::

Charges for Services
1%

Operating Grants &
Contributions
14%

Local Revenues

Federal Revenue
10%

Revenue Limit
Sources
59%

Total Revenues $5,079,026

E Revenue Limit Sources
# Federal Revenue

@ State Revenues

@ Local Revenues

® Charges for Services

& Operating Grants & Contributions




Total Program Expenses $5,598,227

Plant Services  Other Outgo

17% 19% Instruction

44%

General
Administration
14%

B Instruction

B Instruction-Related Services
B Pupil Services

B Ancillary Services

 General Administration

i Plant Services

Ancillary Services & Other Outgo

1%
Pupil Services Instruction-Related

14% 9%

Governmental Activities

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the District's functions as well as each function’s net cost (total cost
less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was funded
by charges for services, operating grants and capital grants and contributions.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $5,598,227.

The amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes was 2,349,843.

Some of the costs were paid directly from people who directly benefited from the programs $30,737
(Charges for Services) or by grants and contributions $709,226.

Table 3

Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Met Cost of Services
2013 2012 2013 2012

Instruction 3 2437304 3 26568413 $ 2,139,037 3 2,353,700
Instruction-Related Service 510,478 528,742 448,145 465,104
Pupil Services 805,171 806,778 629,695 616,745
Ancillary Services 50,841 45,153 44 532 38,613
General Administration 794,203 819,274 604,246 719,738
Plant Services 971,057 843,247 873,526 845,143
Other Qutgo 28.083 627 29,083 627
TOTAL $ 5,598,227 5 5803234 5 4858264 $ 5,040,670

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’'S FUNDS

The overall financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well.
As the District completed the year, its govemmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$2,510,594, which is a decline from last year's ending fund balance of $1,027,975. The district removed
mold and replaced the roof at Loyalton High School.,



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revises its annual budget to reflect unexpected changes in
revenues and expenditures. The final amendment to the budget was approved August 2013. A schedule
of the District's original and final budget amounts compared with actual revenues and expenses is
provided in the supplemental section of the audited financial report.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

At June 30, 2013, the District had invested $4,725,631 in a broad range of capital assets including land,
buildings and improvements, equipment and vehicles. During the year the District invested in building
renovations. See Table 4. More detailed information about the District's capital assets is presented in
the notes to the financial statements.

Table 4
Capital Assets

Total Percentage

Governmental Activities Change
2013 2012 2013-2012

Land 3 182,882 3 182,692 0.00%
Construction in Progress BY3 797 $ 133,142 £56.29%
Buildings & Improvements 7,755,444 7,702,482 0.69%
Machinery and Equipment 574,217 605,839 -5.22%
Totals at Historical Cost 9,386,150 8,624,155 8.84%
Total Accumulated Depreciation (4,660,519) (4,426,534) 5.29%
MNET CAPITAL ASSETS 3 4,725,631 5 4,197,621 12.58%

The District's fiscal year 2014 budget projects spending of $1,312,367 for capital projects, primarily to
complete the reroof project at Loyalton High. The capital projects will be funded by the general fund and
60% of allowable reroof cost will be reimbursed by the State's Facility Hardship program.

Long-Term Debt

At year end, the District had $207,595 in debt, consisting of Compensated Absences, and Other Post
Employment Benefits, as shown in Table 5. The District added $19,236 in debt during the fiscal year.
More detailed information about the District’'s debt is presented in the notes fo the financial statements,

Table 5
Long-Term Debt
Total Percentage

Governmental Activities Change
2013 2012 2013-2012
Compensated Absences 3 16,353 3 16,426 -0.44%
Post Employment Benefits 191,242 165,654 15.45%
Capital Lease - 6,279 -100.00%
TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT $ 207,595 3 188,358 10.21%




ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several
circumstances that could affect its future financial health:

o The uncertainty of federal and state funding can have a profound impact on the financial heaith
of the District. Although no changes are currently anticipated, the federal and the state
governments could implement budget cuts.

QO The continuing increases in premiums for health care insurance and worker's compensation
could have a significant effect on the future financial health of the District. The 2013 premium for
health insurance increased by 8% over the 2012 premium. The workers compensation rate
increased by 3.5% over the 2012 rate. Health care premiums are predicted to continue to
increase into the foreseeable future.

O The budget assumptions used to prepare the budget for 2013 included a 1.565% cost of living
allowance (COLA).

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, participants, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report, or need additional
financial information, contact:

Rose Asquith

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Post Office Box 955

109 Beckwith Road

Loyalton, CA 96118

10



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash in Revolving Fund
Accounts Receivable
Due from Grantor Governmenis
Prepald Expenses
Capital Assets:

Land

Buildings, Net

Equipment, Net

Work in Progress

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Due to Grantor Governments
Unearmed Revenue
Moncurrent Liabilltles:
Other Postemployment Benefit Obligation
Due in more than one year
Total Liakilities

MET POSITION
Met Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Federal and State Programs
Capital Projects

Unrestricted e N . " e
P A A B N R B T A i)

1 -‘: it "-.'-5'3':‘-5\?;5'5‘1.:'3‘1;‘5-'}1 'J.??J‘J.'-:l:‘{o"' qr 9'-".'-‘30%‘@%‘-“& “’a':;-"i\"{"h E?-.'-L'f"-.'
LN bkt ek LSRR LR LI, R A A R S A N A S I L

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

11

Activiies

$

8472276

1,443,646

Govemmental

3,620,530
3,400
1,995

113,234
7.486

182,682
3,592,081
77,081
873,797

934,440
295,549
6,062

191,242
16,353

4,725,631

62,436
14,504
2,226,059

PR IR
SRRl

EXHIBIT A1



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

_Functions/Pragrams

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Government Activities:
Instruction
Instruction-Related Services
Pupil Services
Ancillary Services
General Adrministrafion
Plant Senices
Otfrar Outgo

Total Gevernmental Activifies
Total Primary Government

Expenses

% 2,437,304
510,478

805,171

50,841

794,293

971,057

29,083

5 508,227
§__ 5508227

General Revenues:
Ravente Limit Sources
Faderal Revanueas
State Revanues
Local Revenues

Transfars

EANE A

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

Nefipasition SR na*#ff

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

12

Mat (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revanues Met Position
Operating
Charges far Grants and Govemnmental
__Services _Contributions Activities
5 2,754 5 205,513 § (2,139,037}
576 61,757 (448,145)
26,523 149,853 (629,695)
b8 6,251 {44,532)
825 88,122 (634,246)
a01 96,630 (B73,526)
_ (29,083)
30,737 709,226 (4,858,264}
s 30,737 ] 709,226 {4,858,264)
2,997,031
499,656
614,960
227 416
T T4339,068
{519,201)
7.547 831

TN 3 SERRANRRE
B e e B ok :




SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

EARIDIT A-a

County School Other Total
General Facilities Govemmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash In County Treasury $ 3,050455 % 561,075 & 5 3,620,530
Cash in Revolving Fund 3,400 3,400
Accounts Receivabila 1,333 662 1,995
Due from Grantor Governmenis 79,570 33,664 113,234
Due from Cther Funds 6,956 6,956
Frepaid Expend.rmres _ 7487
E‘Eﬁal'-u LR A \ ] :‘00‘-‘? L;EEEEE;
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable & 360,500 % 561,075 % 12,865 § 934,440
Due to Grantor Governmenis 295,549 295,549
Due to Other Funds 6,957 6.957
Unearned Revenue 6,062 6,062
Total Liabilities 662,11 L 561,075 19,822 1,243,008
Fund Balance:
Monspendable Fund Balances:
Revolving Cash 3,400 3,400
Prepaid ltems 7,487 7,487
Restricted Fund Balances 62,436 14,504 76,940
Assigned Fund Balances 194,980 194,980
Unassigned:
Reserve for Economic Uncertainty 520,073 520,073
Other Unassigned 1,707,714 1,707,714
Total Fund Balance 2,496,090 14,504 2,510,584

Ao HiApsS e R RS T

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

13



EXHIBIT A-4
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013
Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet - $ 2,510,594
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:
‘Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 4,725,631
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported In the funds. (16,353)
Other long-term liabilities which are not due and payable in the current period are not reported in the funds, (191,242}
Met position of governmental activities - Statement of Net Position $ 7,028,630

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

14



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT A-5

County School Other Taotal
General Facilities Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Revenue Limit Sources:
State Apportionments & 647,188 B 647,188
Local Sources 2,349,843 2,349,843
Federal Revenue 607 442 64,418 671,860
Other State Revenue 1,126,226 5352 1,131,578
Other Local Revenue 226,561 1 51,995 278,557
Total Hevenues 4,957,260 1 121,765 5,079,026
Expenditures: :
instruction 2,374,662 2,374,662
Instruction - Related Services 502,270 502,270
Pupil Services 652,129 153,042 805,171
Anciltary Services 50,841 50,841
General Administration 806,173 806,173
Plant Services 785,895 727,942 18,685 1,632,522
Other Outgo 28,762 28,762
Debt Service:
Principal 6,278 6,278
Interest 322 322
Total Expenditures 5,200,732 727,942 178,327 6,107,001
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
COver (Under) Expenditures {243,472) (727.941) {56,562) {(1,027.975)
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfers In 770,601 64 466 835,067
Transfers Qut {835,067) (835,067}
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) (835,067} 770,601 64,466
Met Change in Fund Balance {1,078,539) 42,660 7,904 {1,027 975)
Fund Balance, July 1 6,600 3,538,568
F@.ﬁ@a \‘l@g}i\\‘} A A I T Q’E“W

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

15



EXHIBIT A-6
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $  (1,027.975)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
{"SOA" are different because:

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 810,350
The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (282,340}
Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 6,279
Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA but as the amount paid In the funds. 73
Post Employment benefits are reported as the amount eamed in the SOA but as the amount
pald in the funds. (25,588}
Change in net position of governmental activities - Statement of Activities $ {519,201)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

16



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

Foundation
Trust
Fund
ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury ] 18,742
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Investments 34,277
Total Assets 53,019
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 5 3,000
Due to Student Groups
Total Liabilities 3,000
NET POSITION:
Held in Trust

M e
ﬁﬁ@\iﬂ' e e

o {?""Gnht":}-\ﬂ '({,;"r“ ”f‘f%z
SRR

‘::'r‘:;@n- e

SRR ¢ DO
s S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

17

EXHIBIT A-7

Agency
Fund

Student

Body
Fund

51,205

51,205

51,205

51,205



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Additions:

Investment income

Wet {Decrease) In Falr Value of Investments
Total Additions

Deductions:

Professional Services
Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

MNet Position-Beginning of the Year
MNet Position-End of the Year

Foundation
Trust
Fund

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

18

EXHIBIT A-B



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

A.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (District) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the
policies and procedurss of the Departtment of Education's “California School Accounting Manual” The accounting
policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
prescribed by the Govermnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA).

1.

Reporting Entity

The Districts combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operafions. The District evaluated
whether any other entty should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including
organizations as component units within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in GASE Statement No. 14,
"The Financial Raporting Entity.” include whether:

the organization s legally separate {can sue and be sued in its name)

the District holds the corporate powers of the organization

the District appoints a voting majority of the arganization's board

the District is able to impaoase its will an the organizatlon

- the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefitburden on the District
there ig fiscal dependency by the organization on the Disfrict

The District also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources are used principally
to provide support to the District to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would result in financial
statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement Mo. 14 requires inclusion of such an
organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the District, its component units or its constituents; and 2} The
District or its component unit is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources received or held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the District.

Based on these criteria, the Distrlet has no component units. Additionally, the District is not a component unit of
any other reporting entity as defined by the GASE Statement.

Basis of P ion. Basis of A .
a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net positon and the statement of activities inciude the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the double-counting of internal activiies, Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovarnmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically assocciated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly ldentifiable to a particular function. The District does
not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues include {a) fees, fines, and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a parlicular program. Revenues
that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues,

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide Information about the Disftrict's funds,
with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major govemmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

18



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the Districts primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District except those required to be accounted for in another fund,

The County School Facilties Fund is established to receive funds authorized by the State Allocation
Board for new school facility construction, modemnization projects, and facllity hardship grants.

In addition, the District reports the following fund types:

Private-Purpose Trust Funds: These funds are used to report trust arrangements under which principal and
income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments not reported in other fiduciary fund types.

Agency Funds: These funds are used to report student ai:livity funds and other resources held in a purely custodial
capacity (assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment, and
remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However, because their assets are held in
a trustee or agent capacity and are therefore not available to support District programs, these funds are not
included in the government-wide statements.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus. They are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabiliies are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives
{or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes,
grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which
the taxes are received. Revenue from grants, entittements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Govermental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The District considers revenues collected within 60 days
after its year-end to be available in the current period. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of
property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the
susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellansous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash
because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as
eamed, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured, General
capital asset acquisiions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general
long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the District incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may
be used, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

3. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which
commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. Al
encumbrances are liguidated as of June 30.

20



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

4. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds. By state law, the District's govemning board must adopt a final budget no later than July 1.
A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The District's governing board
satlsfied these requirements.

These budgets are revised by the District's governing board and district superintendent during the year to give
consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures. It is the final revied budget that is presented in the
finanacial statements.

Formal budgetary integration was used as a management control device during the year for all budgeted funds.
Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by maljor object code.

5.  Assets, Liabilities. and Equity

a.

Deposits and Investments

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured to $250,000 by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized,

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all its cash in the
Sierra County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other districts in the county and invests
the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value. Interest eamed is
deposited quarterly into participating funds, except for the Tax Overide Funds, in which interest earned is
credited to the general fund. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool,

The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section
53648 et seq. The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal depository insurance or are
collateralized.

Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with Sierra County Treasury was not
available,

Stores Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the
ime individual inventory items are purchased. These inventores are immateral and have been omitted
from these statements.

The District has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when
purchased or during the benefiting period. The District has chosen to report the expenditure during the
benefiting period.

Capital Assets
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs

that do not add to the value of the asset or materally extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization
threshold of $5,000 is used.

21



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Vehicles 2-15
Office Equipment 3-15
Computer Equipment 315

d. HReceivable and Payable Balances

The District believes that sufficient detall of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial
statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided
which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

e. Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabllities of the District. The current
portion of the liabllities is recognized in the general fund at year end.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilitles of the District. The District's policy is to
record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such bensfits do not vest nor is payment
probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service perlod for calculation of retirement
benefits when the employee retires.

. Uneamed Revenus

Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the extent that
qualified expenditures have been incurred, Unearned revenue is recorded to the extent cash received on specific
projects and programs exceeds qualified expenditures.

g. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans
are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation.

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expendilures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers® line
on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are
netted and presented as a single “Internal Balances" line of the government-wide statement of net
assels.

h.  Property Taxes
Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two

installments on November 1 and February 1. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one instaliment on or
before August 31. The Counties of Sierra and Plumas bill and collect the taxes for the District.

22



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

i.  Equily Classifications
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Fund balances of the governmental funds are classitied as follows:

Monspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as
notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of
a formal action by the District's governing board. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal
action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due
process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of
the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that the constraints
on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but
that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the
governing board or by an official or body to which the governing board delegates the authority, Specific
amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service or
permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's
primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts Is
for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the District itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for
any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other govemmental
funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for specific
purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first When an expenditure is
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally
unassigned funds.

The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the
need to reduce service levels because of temporary revenue shorifalls or unpredicted expenditures. The
Districts Minimum Fund Balance Policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, consisting of
unassigned amounts, equal to 10% of general fund operating expenditures plus an additional $750,000
for operations in fiscal year 2012/2013. If a fund balance drops below 5%, it shall be recovered at a
minimum rate of 1% each year.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:
Net Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital assets including restricted  capital

assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of debt borrowings
that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

23



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Restricted Met Position consists of net assets with restrictions placed on the use either by external groups
such as contrbutors, grantors, laws or regulations of other govermments, or law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Met Position consists of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or
"net investment in capital assets."

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires the use of management's estimates. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. :

Subsequent Event Evaluation

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 5, 2013, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

e ’ A o
Finance-Related Legail and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Siatement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,” violations of finance-
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations:

Violation Action Taken
Mone reported Mot applicable

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which address
such deficits:

Deficit
Fund Name Amount Bemarks
MNone % M MNSA

Excess of Expenditures Over Apprapriations

As of June 30, 201 3, no expenditures exceeded appropriations in individual funds.

Cash and Invesiments

1.

Cash in County Treasury:

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of ils cash in the
Slerra County Treasury as part of the common investment pool ($15,791.485 as of June 30, 2013). The fair
value of the District's portion of this pool as of that date, as provided by the pool sponsor, was $3,639,272.
Assumplions made in determining the fair value of the pooled investment portfolios are available from the
County Treasurer.

Cash.on Hand, in Banks. and in Revolving Fund
Cash balances on hand and in banks ($51,205 as of June 30, 2013) and in the revolving fund {$3,400) are

insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial
institution is fully insured or collateralized.

24



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

{nvestments:

The District owns 1,110 shares of Exelon Corporation common stock, donated to the District for the benefit of
Loyalton High School students. The wvalue of this stock fluctuates on a dally basis and may lose value. The
stock is maintained in the Foundation Trust Fund and does not follow the District’s invesiment policy.

The District's Trest Fund investment at June 30, 2013 is shown below,

Fair
Investment or Investment Type Maturity Value
Exelon Corporation Gomeman Stock (1,110 Sh} NIA 3 34,277
Total Investments b 34,277

Investment Accounting Policy

The District is required by GASE Statement No. 31 to disclose its policy for determining which investments, if
any, are reported at amortized cost. The District's general policy s to report money market investments and
short-term participating Interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating
Interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is
significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the Issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair
value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher
value. The term "short-term™ refers to invesiments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of
purchase. The term “nonparticipating” means that the investment's value does not vary with market inferest rate
changes. MNonnegotiable - cerlificates of deposit are examples of nonparicipating interest-earning investment
confracts.

The District's investments in external investment pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value
per share of the pool's underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, In which case they are reported at share
value. A 2av-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") as an
investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the
SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940,

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 8 182,692 % L 3 182,692
Work in progress 133,142 740,655 873,797
Total capital assets not being depreciated 315,834 740,655 1,056,489
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 7,702 482 52,962 7,755,444
Equipment 605,839 16,733 48 355 574,217
Total capital assets being depraciated 8,308,321 69,695 48,355 8,329,661
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements (3,941,501} 221,862 (4,163,363)
Equipment (485,033) 48,355 60,478 {497 ,156)
Total accumulated depreciation {4,426,534) 48,355 282,340 i4,660,519)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3,881,787 118,080 330,695 3,669,142
Governmental activities capital assets, net 3 4197621 % 858,705 % 330,695 3 4 725631

25



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

Instruction $ araz27
Instruction-Related Services 8,208
General Administration 4,853
Plant Services 232,152

1. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

$ 285,340

Due To Fund Bue From Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund Other Governmental Funds % 2,073 Heimburse expenses

General Fund Speclal Reserve for Cap Qutlay 4,883 Reimburse short term loan
Total g 6,956

All amolunts due are schedulad to be repaid within ane yvear.

2. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Transfers From Transfars To Amount Reason

General Fund Other Governmental Funds 3 58,496 Reimburse expenses

General Fund Special Reserve for Cap Outlay 5,970  Supplement other funds sources

General Fund County School Facility Fund 770,601  Fund Capital Outlay Project
Total 3 835,067

G. Long-Term Obligations

Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended
June 30, 2013, are as follows:

Amounis
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increasas__ Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental activities:
Capital lzases 3 6,279 % 5 6,279 & %
Compensated absences 16,426 73 16,353
Other Post Employment Ben 165,654 25,588 191,242
Total governmental activities $ 188,359 § 25588 $ 6,352 $ 207 595 $

26



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability Activity Type  Fund
Compensated absances Governmental  General
Capital Leases Governmental  Special Reserve for Capital Qutiay

Other Post Employment Ben  Governmental  General
H. i int P

The District participates in three Joint Powers Agreements {JPA's), the Sierra Self Insurance Group, the Tri-Counties
Schools Insurance Group, and the Northeastern JPA. The insurance groups arrange for and provide property,
liability, health and worker's compensation insurance for their members., The District pays premiums comensurate
with the level of coverage requested. These are partial self-insurance programs.

An executive committee consisting of representatives from each member's District governs the JPA's. The
governing boards control the operations of their JPA's independent of any influence by the District beyand the
District's representation on the govemning boards.

The JPA's are independently accountable for their fiscal matters. The insurance groups maintain  their own
accounting records. The budget is not subject to any approval other than that of the executive committee. The
relationship between the District and the JPA's is such that the JPA's are not component units of the District for
linancial reporting purposes.

Condensed financial information for the JPA's for June 30, 2013 was not available as of our report date,

. Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies of the
State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), and classified
employees are members of the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS).

PERS:
Plan Descripti

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirernent System
(CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-ofliving adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Refirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive
annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the
CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 Q Street, Sacramento,
California 95811,

Fundi .

Active plan members are required to contribute 6% to 7% of their salary and the District is required to contribute an
actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted
by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2012-13 was
11.417% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The
District's contributions to CalPERS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $85,221, §78,544
and $75,686, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year.

27



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

5TRS:
Plan Desgription

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a costsharing multiple-employer public
employee refirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement,
disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legisiatively
amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial repart
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Coples of the STRS annual financial
report may be obtained from the CalSTRS, 100 Waterfront Place, West Sacramento, California 95805,

Active plan members are required lo contribute 8% of their salary and the District is required to contribute an
actuarially determined rate. The actuardal methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted
by the STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribulion rate for fiscal year 2012-13 was 8.25%
of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The District's
contributions to STRS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $133,876, $133,633 and
$151,918, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year. The amount contributed by the
State on behalf of the District was $73,741.

J. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

The District is not involved in any Itigation. In the opinfon of management and legal counsel, the disposition of all
litigation pending will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is
believed that any required reimbursemeant will not be material.

K. Subsequent Events
Sale of School Site

On July 19, 2013, the District sold the Pliocene Ridge school site. The selling price was $500,000 and the
District received $467,749 after escrow closing costs and commissions.

Loyalton High School Roof Construction Project

The District is in the middle of a construction project to completely reroof Loyalton High Schoaol. The expected
cost of the project is $1.6 million. The District entered in to a $225,890 interim financing agreement with Randy
Hill Construction and will fund the rest of the project with District reserves. The District expects a $1 million
reimbursement from state school construction funds. Construction is expected to be completed in the summer of
2013,

L. Belated Party Transaction

Slerra  County Office of Education serves only the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District. As a result, the two entities are housed in the same building and share a common adminstration,
including board members, and share office space and personnel. For the year ended June 30, 2013, the District
charged the County Office $26,040 for one half of the board members' health benefits; $104,938 for the cost to
operate the opportunity program; $17,968 for the cost to operate career technical education classes, and $52,732

28



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

for business related services. During the same period of time, the County Office charged the District $240,298
for business related services.

M. Other Post Employment Benefits

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement MNo. 45 Accounting and Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, for certaln
poslemployment health care benefits provided by the District.  The requirements of this Statement were
implemented prospectively, and accordingly, for financial reporting purposes, no liability is reported for the
postemployment health care and life insurance benefits liabillty at the date of transition. The recognition of the
liability accumulated from prior years will be phased in over 30 years.

ripti iggibaili
Confidential and classified employees may elect in writing to take advantage of their choice of 1 of the following offers:
A. 1 year of retiree benefits (at the Tiered Rate) for medical, dental, and vision plans for the retiree, spouse and family, or
B. $12,604.50 for the term of 1 year.
Certificated employees may elect In writing to take advantage of their choice of 1 of the following offers:

A. 3 years of refiree benefits {at the Tiered Rate} for medical, dental, and vision plans for the retiree, spouse and
family, capped at the employer dollar cotribution in the year of the unit member's final year of service, or

B. A lump sum dollar amount per year for 3 years set up at the dollar contribution per paragraph "a" above made by
the employer in the year of the unit members final year of service.

Al contracts with District employees will be renegotiated periodically in the future, thus costs and benefits
are subject to change. Benefits and contribution requirements for the Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB} plan
are established by various labor agreements.

For the District, OPEB benefits are administered by District personnel. No separate financial statements are issued.

The number of participants as of July 1, 2011, the effective date of the triennial OPEB valuation is 41 active
employees and 6 retirees for a total of 47 participants.

Funding Poli

The District currently pays for post employment healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The District Is
considering creating a Trust Fund to accumulate assets for future retiree obligations. Due to the requirements of
GASB MNo. 45, assets intended to fund future obligations are not considered to offset the unfunded benefit
obligation until the assets are transferred to an irrevocable trust designed to pay for future OPEB costs. Currently,
these financial staterments assume that funding on a pay-as-you-go basis will continue.

Actuarial M .

Projections of benefits for financlal reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan {the plan as understood by
the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
Significant actuarial methods and assumptions are as follows:

29



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Plan Type

Actuarial Valuation Date
Amortization Method
Remaining Amartization Period

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Retumn
Projected Salary Increases
Healthcare Inflation Rate

Annual OPER Cost and Wet OPEB Obligations.

The following table shows the District’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and

changes in the District's net OPEB obligation:
Description
Mormal Cost {service cost for one year)
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
Interest on Mormal Cost and Amortization
Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
Interest on Net OPEE Obligation
Adjustment to Annual Reguired Confribution
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense)
Contribution toward the OPEB Cost {Expense Reduction)

Increase {Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation
Met OPEB Obligation, Beginning of the Year

Met OPEB Obligation, End of the Year

The District's annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30,

2013 and the two preceding years are as follows:

Projected Unit Method
July 1, 2011

Level Percentage of Projected Payrall

25 Years

2.00%
1.00%
5.00%

June 30, 2013
% 70,725
50,335

121,060
3,230

(6,968)
117,322
{81,735}

25,587
165,655

s___ 191242

Percentage of
Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contribution Contributed Gbligatiun
June 30, 2011 5 113,751 % 71,576 62.92% 3 117,908
June 30, 2012 % 121,060 % 73,313 60.56%: % 165,655
June 30,2013 % 1MM7322 % 91,735 78.19% 5 191,242
Eunding Status and Funding Progress

The required schedule of funding progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial

benefiis.

30

accried liability for



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2013 and the two preceding years are as follows:

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial WValue of Liability ALL Funded Covered Of Covered
Valuation Assels {AAL) {UALL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) b - b-a alb {c) {{b-alic)
63011 & - 8 883,923 § 883,923 0.00%§ 2,487,297 35.54%
63012 § - % 1,175,680 § 1,175,680 0.00% § 2,807,181 41.88%
63013 § - B 1,175,680 % 1,175,680 0.00% § 2,520,781 48.64%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events in the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment and
termination, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the

annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future,

. ‘on of Funding Risk

Due to the nature of the District's operating environment, the District is dependent on Federal and State funding to
maintain the current level of services to Its students. A significant recession beginning in December 2007 has
created a climate of uncerainty for the Federal and State governments. As governmental agencies look to balance

budgets and improve cash flow, funding for the District's programs may be at risk of being restructured, reduced, or
gliminated.

31



Required Supplementary Information

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by the Govermmental
Accounting Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statements.



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
Revenues: .
Revenue Limit Sources: _
State Apporiionments 3 682,008 % 686,101
Local Sources 2,229,186 2,317,283
Federal Revenue 146,602 630,184
Other State Revenue 1,057,085 1,072,965
Other Local Revenueg 187,650 234,575
Total Revenues 4,302,531 4,941,108
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated Salaries 1,760,246 1,730,038 =1
Classified Salaries 747,469 746,774 o
Employee Benefits 1,195,463 1,156,396 %
Books And Supplies 102,683 238,537 2
Services And Other Operating Expendituras 1,397,478 1,465,112 g:;
Other Outgo ' 35,594 28,774 2
Capital Outlay 190,742 48,002 e
Total Expenditures 5,429,675 5411,633
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures (1,127,144} (470,525)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers Out (78,281} (858,117)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {78,281) {858,117)
Met Change in Fund Balance - {1,205,425) (1,328,642)

Fund Balance, July 1
B O CArhon Apie bt gl oy bnis it s tiis i inisied Snininasnetionl s
i ; B T R T P e R e e 2

EXHIEIT B-1

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
{Negative)

i
1-.

e L e L A T
S R S o L
Al e e

B I ' R

e
PRy

3,574,629

n

3z

(38,913)
32,560
(22,742)
53,261

(8,014)

16,152

227,053

23,050

23,050

250,103




SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAFETERIA FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenuas:
Faderal Revenue
Other State Revenue
Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Centificated Salaries

Classified Salarles

Employee Benefits

Books And Supplies

Services And Other Operaling Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfars in
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Met Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1

FiigEalaiie iinsgaraEenuian S

VO R
i AN,

EXHIBIT C-1
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
SRR
(3 e
$ 61500 & “@ : $ 2,918
5,500 b.., (148)
20,000 ot 4,776
87,000 7,546
4,749 i
73,380 171
32,735 118
51,070 9,786
4,317 3,133
166,251 13,209
{79,251) 20,755
79,251 20,755
79,251 {20,755)

izl AT e
S
LeaRlal .'-;0‘-:}‘ -;0{."-‘65
R

TR P i
R

R ol

33



SIERRAFLUNAS SAJIINT UNIFIEW oLNUUL Dia i1 EXHIBIT C-2
COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Variance
Positive
Budget Ar.lual _ (Negative)

Revenues:
Cther Local Revenue $
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Services And Other Operating Expenditures 205
Capital Outlay 730,000
Total Expenditures 730,205
Excass (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expendilures (730,205)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 772,866
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 772,866
Net Change in Fund Balance 42 661

Fu nd Balance, July 1

:B I ;g: S s
2 jl\%ﬂ el % U@:\. pE s \.r'-’:'k‘-'.'\.:-'.'-"’n"."a-'} HFIC;"&E&

:E.:&; BT e

SR AL

34



<SICRRATrLUNAS JUINRE UNIFIED oLnUUL Do TRICT EXHIBIT C-3
SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Megative)
Revenues: o
Other Local Revenue $ 27219 $ :‘-t:.fff‘*-'-“ﬁ 7ieis  $
Total Revenues 27,219 e
Expenditures:
Current: o
Services And Other Operating Expenditures 6,000 Emﬁj : oo 29
Capital Outlay 27,219 *{iifv»‘:‘im»sm : 14,505
Debt Service: -.~-‘*“’?‘*"'f-‘“?ﬂ.“5‘““ -
Principal 6,278
Intgrest 322
Total Expenditures 39,819 14,534
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Owver (Under) Expenditures {12,600) 14,534
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 6,000 0
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 6,000 (30}
Met Change in Fund Balance (6,600) 14,504
Fund Balance, July 1 6,600

R o e

ey

e e oy T, b-‘:‘xﬁ SRR -_--._-__,_,d,’-_:,: -Q. R sl TR % e
B, Ny TELONIOTIEY SRR aRRe ot )
) @ﬁm.‘a SRR :-.th'-f R ) D-’éﬂ{.{ﬂ;.q’}i’:‘«.gﬁ'.\_ o =

35



Other Supplementary Information

This section includes financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a part of the basic financlal statements. It may, however, include information which is
required by other entities.



SIERARA-FLUNMAS JOUINT UNIFIED SCROOUL DISTRICGT
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

JUNE 30, 2013

The Slerra-Plumas Joint Unified School District was established in 1951, and comprises an area of
approximately 1,600 square miles located in Plumas and Sierra Counties. There were no changes in the
boundaries of the District during the current year. The District is currently operating two elementary schools,
one middle school, two high schools, and one continuation high school.

Governing Board

Name Office Term and Term Expiration
Mike Moore President 4 years expiring December 2014
Sharon Dryden Clerk 4 years expiring December 2014
Tim Driscoll Vice President 4 years expiring December 2016
Allen Wright . Member 4 years expiring December 2014
Patricia Hall Member 4 years expiring December 2016

Administration

Stan Hardeman
Superintendent

Rose Asquith
Business Manager

36



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCGHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Second Period Report

Annual Report

TABLE D-1

Original Revised
Elementary:
Kindergarten 22.11 2211
Grades 1 through 3 74.68 74.68
Grades 4 through 6 87.01 87.01
Grades 7 and & 55.24 55.24
Elementary totals 239.04 239.04
High School:
Grades 9 through 12, reqular classes 120.18 120.18
Continuation education 4.66 4.66
High school totals 124.85 124.85
ADA totals 363.89 363.89
Hours of
Summer School Attendance
Elementary M/A
High Schoal NYA

Average daily attendance Is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the district,

Original Revised
22.08 22.08
75.39 75.39
8r.23 87.23
54,94 54,94

239.64 239.64
121.20 121.20
4.36 4.36
125.56 125.56
365.20 365.20
The purpose

of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apporionments of state funds are
made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade

levels and in different programs,

7



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-2

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Mumber MNumber
1982-83 1982-83 1986-87 1986-87 201213 of Days of Days
Actual Adjusted & Minutes Adjusted &  Actual  Traditional  Multitrack

Grade Level Minutes Heduced Hequirement Reduced Minutes  Calendar  Calendar Status

Kindergarten N/A N/A 36,000 35,000 37,800 180 - In Compliance
Grade 1 NIA NIA 50,400 49,000 53,290 180 - In Compliance
Grade 2 NIA MIA 50,400 49.000 53,290 180 - In Compliance
Grade 3 N/A M/A 50,400 49,000 53,290 180 - In Compliance
Grade 4 MIA MIA 54,000 52,500 57,580 180 - In Compliance
Grade 5 MIA /A 54,000 52,500 57,580 180 - In Compliance
Grade § MAA MAA 54,000 52,500 57,580 180 - In Compliance
Grade 7 MfA WA 54,000 52,500 66,274 180 - In Compliance
Grade 8 NA MA 54,000 62,500 66,274 180 - In Compliance
Grade 9 M/A B 64,800 63,000 67,200 180 - In Compliance
Grade 10 NfA NA 64,800 63,000 67,200 180 - In Compliance
Grade 11 MNIA MN/A 64,800 63,000 67,200 180 - In Compliance
Grade 12 A NIA 64,800 63,000 67,200 180 - In Compliance

Districts, including basic ald distdcts, must maintain thefr instructional minutes at elther the 1982-83 actual minutes or
the 1986-87 requirements, whichever is greater, as required by Education Code Section 46201, This schedule is
required of all districts, including basic aid districts.

The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for Longer

Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instruction time offered by the District and
whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206.

38



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-3
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Budget
2014

General Fund {sae note 1) 2013 2012 2011
Revenues and other financial sources 4,861,742 § 4,957,260 5,004,467 % 6,307,188
Expenditures 5,161,368 5,200,732 5,276,758 5,447,299
Other uses and transfers out 453,308 835,067 42,084 58,578
Total outgo 5,614 676 6,035,799 5,318,842 5,505,877
Change In fund balance (deficit) {752,934) (1,078,539) {224,375) 801,311
Ending fund balance 1,743,156 § 2,496,090 3,567,285 $“_ 3,791,660
Available reserves (see note 2) 1,440,225 % 2,227,788 3799799 &% 3,340,441
Available reserves as a percentage

of total outgo (see note 3) 25.7% 36.9% 620% ____ 60.7%
Total long-term debt 207,595 % 207,595 188,358 § 146,756
Average daily attendance at P-2 358 364 383 394

This schedule discloses the district's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget
information. These financial trénd disclosures are used to evaluate the district's abllity to continue as a golng

concem for a reasonable period of ime.

The District's reserves remain well above guidelines established by the State Department of Education. Howerver, due
to the State of California's economic problems, the district should be diligent in maintaining its reserves,

NOTES:

1 Budget 2014 is Included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit.
2 Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances and all funds reserved for economic uncertainties

contained within the General Fund.

3 On behalf payments have been excluded from the calculation of available reserves for the fiscal years ending

June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

39



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D4
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET

REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Al fund balances from the annual financial and budget report reconcile to the audited financlal statements.

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balances of all funds as reported on the
SACS report to the audited financlal statements. Funds that required no adjustment are not presented.

40



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-5
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Mo charter schools are chartered by Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District.

included In
Charler Schools Audit?
Mone MNIA

41



2lERRA-FLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-6
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity ldentifying Federal
Program Title Mumber Number Expenditures
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct Program:
Small Rural School Achievement Program 84.358 M/A 5 11,402
Passed Through State Department of Education: _
Title 1 - Basic Grants * 84.010 14329 79,518
Vocational Education 84.048 14894 3,026
Title Il - Improving Teacher Quality B84.367 14341 13,840
Total Passed Through State Department of Education 96,384
Total U. 8. Department of Education 107,786
U. 3. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through State Department of Education:
School Breakfast Program * 10.553 13525 12,565
National School Lunch Program * 10.555 13523 51,853
Food Distribution 10.558 13534 15,643
Total Passed Through State Department of Education 80,061
Passed Through Sierra County Office of Education:
Forest Resarve * 10.665 N/A 499,608
Tutal U.s, Egepartmar}; of Agriculture ) auen gas e o e - 5?9 ,669
TALERFENURES DR EROPPRACAVIISIas & 00 B e SRS EEREEE

* Indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-133 Gompliance Supplement

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

42




SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 '

Basis of P .

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and MNon-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in
this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose
financial statements.

43



Other Independent Auditor's Reports



IetonAu ma nPC lohn E. Auman, cra

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E. Singleton, cpa, MSAce

Board of Trustees
Slerra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierraville, California 96126

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Slandards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified
School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated Cctober 5, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sierra-Plumas Joint
Unified School District's internal contral. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant
deficiences.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there Is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider
the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-1 to
2013-2 to be material weaknesses,

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2013-1 to 2013-4 to be significant deficiencies.

Susanville: _ Chester:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 26130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 WWW.5a-cpas.com 530.258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282

44



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Slerra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's Response to Findings

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

P Z A

SingletonAuman PC
Susanville, CA
October 5, 2013

45



| e u m a n PC f John E. Auman, cra

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E. Singleton, CPA, MSAcc

Board of Trustees
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierraville, California 96126

Members of the Board of Trustees:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2013, Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Sierra-Plumas
Joint Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District's compliance.

Opinion en Each Major Federal Program

in our opinion, Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2013,

Susanville: Chester:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax:530.257.8876 WwWWw.sa-cpas.com L30.258.2272 Fax: 530,258, 2282

46



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's internal control
over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiences and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant
deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-1 to
2013-2 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal contral over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-1 to
2013- 2 to be significant deficiencies.

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District's response to the internal control over compliance findings
identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unlified School District's response was not subjected to the auditing proceduras applied in
the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,
/4/% P
e
SingletonAuman PC

Susanville, CA
Qctober 5, 2013

47



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND COMSULTANTS Clay E. Singleton, CPa, MSAcc

ﬁSingletonAu manPC John E. Auman, Cra

Board of Trustees
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierraville, California 96126

Members of the Board of Trustees:
Repott on State Compliance

We have audited the district's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13,
published by the California Education Audit Appeals Panel that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the district's state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Management's Responsibility for State Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its state programs.

Auditer's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified in the
State's audit guide, Standards and Procedures for Audits of Californla K-12 Local Education
Agencies 2012-13 published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the State's audit guide Standards and Procedures for Audits of
California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13 published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel.
Those standards and audit guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on the state programs noted below. An audit inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the district's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Cur audit does not provide a legal determination of the district's compliance with those requirements.

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine
the district's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures In Procedures
Description Audit Guide Performed
Attendance Accounting:
Attendance Reporting B Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments 3 Yes
Kindergarten Continuance 3 Yes
independent Study 23 No {See Below)
Continuation Education 10 No (See Below)
Instructional Time:
School Districts B Yes
Susanvill E:Cnunty Offices of Education _ 3 N/A  chester:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 WWW.53-Cpas.com 530,258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282

48



Instructional Materials, General Requirements 8 Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers 1 Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries 1 Yes
Early Retirement Incentive 4 N/A
GANN Limit Calculation 1 Yes
School Accountability Report Card 3 Yes
Juvenile Court Schools 8 N/A
Class Size Reduction (Including Charter Schools):
General Requirements 7 Yes
Option One 3 Yes
Option Two 4 N/A
Only One School Serving Grades K-3 4 N/A
After School Education and Safety Program:
General Requirements 4 N/A
After School 5 NIA
Before School 6 MN/A
Charter Schools
Contemporaneous Records of Attendance 1 N/A
Mode of Ingtruction 1 MN/A
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study 15 MN/A
- Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction 3 N/A,
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based 4 MN/A

The term "N/A" is used above to mean either the district did not offer the pragram during the current fiscal
year or the program applies to a different type of local education agency.

We did not perform testing for Independent Study or Continuation Education as the ADA was below
the level required for tesfing.

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above
for the year ended June 30, 2013. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of
noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with the State's
audit guide, Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies
2012-13, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel and which are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2013-4.

Respectiully submitted,

Mﬁ‘c

SingletonAuman PC

Susanville, CA
October 5, 2013

49



Findings and Recommendations Section



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 '

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1.

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified? X Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that are
are not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? X Yes
One or mare significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Gircular A-1337 X Yes
Identification of major programs:
Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.665 Forest Reserve
Dollar threshold used 1o distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
State Awards
Internal control over state programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that are
are not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for state programs: Unqualified

50

Mo
Mone Reported |

Mo

Mo

Mone Reported

Mo

Mo

No

None Reported



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

B. Yellow Book/Financial Statement Findings
Internal Control - Material Weakness
Finding 2013-1 Lack of Segregation of Duties (CDDC#30000)

riteri
Yellow Book paragraphs 5.10 - 5.14 and Appendix |, SAS No. 122.

Finding (Conditi
An inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Amount of Questioned costs, How Computed and Prevalence

Mone.

Effect

The District has exposure to risk of financial statement misstatement and the potential risk of fraud.

Cause

Due to the number of personnel assigned to duties that involve access to the general ledger and other
accounting records and who also have custody of and responsibility for handling cash and other assets,
an inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Becommendation
We recommend that the District employees and Board maintain diligence for the potential risks of not
having an adequate segregation of duties.

District's Response
The District concurs with this finding.

51



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

B. Yellow Book/Financial Statement Findings (Cnﬁtinuad}
Internal Control - Material Weakness

Finding 2013-2 Financial Reporting (CDDC#30000)

In accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards Mo, 122 (SAS 122}, the District is responsible ﬁ:rr
preparing complete and accurate financial statements and footnote disclosures in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

Finding (Condition)

Similar to many other small school districts, the District does not have policies and prodedures in place to
ensure that complete and accurate financial statements, MD&A and footnote disclosures are prepared in
accordance with GAAP prior to the annual audit. Management relies upen the auditor to recommend
footnote disclosures for the financial statements and to prepare adjusting journal entries for approval in
order to report financial information In accordance with GAAP.

f ion I
Mone.

Eftect
There is a risk that a material financial statement misstatement may exist and not be prevented or detected

by the District's system of internal control.

Cause
This condition has always existed at the District, and is being reported in accordance with SAS 122.

Becommendation
We recommend that the District consider the cost benefit of hiring an accountant familiar with GAAP or
contracting with an independent CPA firm to compile financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

District's Response
The District has determined that the costs of correcting this control weakness outweigh the benefits to be
received. The District will continue to rely on the independent auditor to prepare its annual financial

statements.

52



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

B. Yellow Book/Financial Statement Findings {Continued)

Internal Control - Significant Deficiency

Finding 2013-3 Control over Student Body Funds{CDDC#30000})

Dls‘[rlﬂt s‘{udent bt}d}.rfund pulmles and prucedures |

During our testing of the Loyalton Middle School Student Body we noted that cash receipts were not
always adequately supported with proper documentation, such as two-person cash counts.

Nu quastlnned costs |
5 of 5 receipts tested were not recorded and counted appropriately.

Effect

The District has exposure to risk of financial statemant misstatement and the potential rigk of fraud.

Cause
District personnel were not fully aware of appropriate policies and procedures. .

Becommendation
We recommend that the District fully implement its student body activity policies and procedures.

Districts R

The District concurs with this recommendation.

53



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

C. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2013-4 Classroom Teacher Salaries (CDDC#61000)

Criteria upon which audit fi_n;jli]g is based (Legal Citation)
Education Code Sections 41372 and 41374.

iti
The District did not meet current expense of education requirements for expenditure for salaries of
classroom teachers as set forth in Education Code Section 41372,

Amount of Questioned costs, How Computed and Prevalence
None. A waiver of Education Code Section 41372 was granted by the Sierra County Office of Education.

Effect
There is no impact on the District since the walver was approved.

Cause

The District believed it met the criteria for exemption from these provigions,

The District should adjust its classroom salaries and benefits to meet the provisions of Education Code
Section 41372.

District's R

The District concurs with this finding.

54



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

D. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Internal Control - Material Weakness
See Yellow Book Findings 2013-1 and 2013-2. Findings also relate to the major programs listed
below:

Program Name: Forest Reserve

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture

Award Year: 2012-2013

Catalog Number: 10.665

Name of Pass-Through Entity: Sierra County Office of Education

mmmmsmﬂmmﬁmmummmeﬂm&nﬁm

None,
E 1 a [ n_ : E. il I E * .

MNane.

Mone.

55



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Management's Explanation

Finding/Recommendation ) ] Current Status It Not Implemented

Lack of Segregation of Duties Mot Implemented. See current year finding
2013-1

Financial Reporting Not Implemented. See current year finding
2013-2

Finding 2012-3

Control over Student Body Funds Partially Implemented. See current year finding
2013-3

Finding 2012-

Classroom Teacher Salaries Not Implemented. See current year finding
2013-4

- 56



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Person Monitoring Corrective Action Plan
County Superintendent, Dr. Merrill M. Grant

Finding 2013-1 Lack of Segregation of Duties (CDDC#30000)
Finding (Condition)

Due to the number of employees an inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Corrective Action Planned

Due to the number of employees of the District it is not possible for the District to cost effectively
mitigate this finding. The District cannot, with its current budget hire an adequate number of
empioyees to insure that custody of assets and accountability for assets is separated.

The District does, however, believe that being aware of this weakness will insure that existing
employees and Board members will maintain diligence to potential risks of not having an adequate
segregation of duties,

Expected Completion Date

Ongoing.
Finding 2013-2 Financial Reporting (CDDC#30000)

The District Is responsible for preparing complete and accurate financial statements, footnote
disclosures, and management's discussion and analysis in accordance with Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles (GAAP).

o ive Action P |
The District has determined that the costs of correcting this control weakness outweigh the
benefits to be received. The District will continue to rely on the independent auditor to prepare its
annual financial statements.

Expected Completion Date

Ongoing.
Finding 2013-3 Control over Student Body Funds(CDDC#30000)

Finding (Condition)
During our testing of the Loyalton Middle School Student Body we noted that cash receipts were
not always adequately supported with proper documentation, such as two-person cash counts.

.
The District will provide professional training to student body clerks. In addition, the District office
personnel will periodically review student body transactions to ensure that student body receipts
have proper documentation and are authorized transaciions.

June 30, 2014,

57



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Finding 2013-4 Classroom Teacher Salaries (CDDC#61000)

Finding(Condition)
The District did not meet current expense of education requirements for expenditure for salaries of
classroom teachers as set forth in Education Code Section 41372.

o live Action P !
A waiver of Education Code Section 41372 was granted by the Sierra County Office of Education.

Expected Completion Date
Ongoing.

58



WY 82:2 £L0Z/ZL/EL pald zi0 | abed (£L02/¥L/80 ASY) JUSEO :8I4
1'Z'€1L0Z - sdemyos Buiuodey [elpueuld SOYS
uopeanpa jo 1dag elopes
SINIWLSNrdY ANY STvNYH00Y
HSYD SM1d ‘HSYD ONIONT. D
80'809°'80.°2 80°€26 L¥9'2 80°61L 666 € 80°ZEEBL6 | 80°609 L¥a ¢ 80°269 TLG 2 BOGLY ¥OLE 80'859°.88°2 3 + V) HSYD ONIANT 4
00°EPL 02 (Goge L IF¢E) 00°88€° 940} 00z 2ee) {00°689° TEE) (00'8L6'061) loo'erz ez} 100257 26/ a+0-9)
3SYIHDIA/ISYIHINI LIN 2
000 000 00'0 o 000 000 000 000 00'668 S0k SNOILOYSNYHL
133HS IONVYIVE TVLOL
0166 Buuea|n ssuadsng
DUNEBdousy
[ 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 SILTIAVIT TY.LOLENS
0696 sanuaasy palaad
0¥96 SuBCT BN
0198 spund jeng oL ang
66560066 3|qefed SJUNOIOY
) SOMIqer]
000 00 000 000 (i3] 000 000 000 00°668°S0F S1388Y 1W1l0.14NSs
obeEs S)8SSY JUBLND JBUlD
OEEB salnipuadx3y pledsid
0ZEG SI015
0le6 Spund Jsyio wel4 ang
0066420 6626-0026 S{JBAI908Y SIUN0DY
00°00F'E 88161118 Angead)| u[JoN yseo
BEEEY
_ SNOILOVSNYHL LAIFHS JONYIVE 'Q
00'06% S9F 00'605'ZeY 00°¥PQ'C0Y 00825 82¥ 00°3FE 6EY 00626 ¥OF 00°ZiF Lo 00'LLY IEL SINIWFSHNESIA IVEOL
: 869£-0692 sesn Buoueuly LYIQ IY
00°000'0F 6294008, NQ SJaJsueL] punusiu|
B6PL-000L obinp 12yo
00265 00'FEL 00802 066Vl 00'GBET 00°/56'€ 0079z 6659-0009 AepnQ (eyden
00%9.7%01 00'290'L5 00°950°L6 00'LvELLL 00'FPE B2 0059626 00'865'F9 00'065°8E 6665-0005 S30IMIBS
000552 00'LZE'S 0090 L1 00'veSEl [LYEEED 00'61Z'L1 00'9LLF 00 19F 866F-0000 sal|ddng pue syoog
00'15¥'¥6 002017 1p1 0G¥BL'GE 00°Z¥8'96 00°vIS' L6 00°'8YE'S6 00°880°2E 00'€Es08 666E-0008 sjaueq sahodug
00°695° LG 00°66€0S 00°00L°6¥ 00'E86'bS 00°50F° LS 0086825 002618 00°856'SZ 6662-0002 salle|eg payssen
00'82Z9'F¥1 00'988crl 00°Z6LBvL 00'6BE YL 00'6STTYE 00°586'Z¥! 00'909°LT 00'1E6'€Z 6661-0001 SBLEB|ES PREDYINRD
S1NINISHNESIA "D
00'¢EZ 58S [T 00°0EY BLF | 00'152'601 Q0°09v LGl 000Z0Fl2 00622 v Q0'8LO'GE [FEERENRCAT
6268068 $80Inog Buisueuly BUYIQ |1y
62680169 U] Si8jsuRI) punysu|
00’ ZP9'EY 00°L2b'5L 00'08L2 00'619°¢E 00'EPR'S 00°LIEE 00°204'Y 6628-0098 anuaAay |E0T AU
00°EL0°L) 00°G85 €l 6658-00€8 shlaasy 2lElS 1BALiQ
00'5¥6'89% 00'SPaal 6628-0018 SNUBARY [E18P3]
6508-0808 SpuUnd SNoSUR|BOSI
00928952 | 6408-0208 s3xe | Apadoldg
00'L¥9'EL O LPe'EL 00°Z£17802 o0’ hyael 00'L¥OEL O0ZLVB0T 00°ZL6"0 00ZLE0Y &108-0L08 yuaLuuciyoddy Jedizuug
: S90IN0S KLU AnUaARY/H44DT
) S.LdI303au 8
S0°ECE L19'E 8081 G668 ¢ S0°ZEEBLE } H0609 172 € 80167 €462 80°GIr ¥0L'2 80'959'/89°2 BO'OLLCEES ; ] HSVD ONINNIDSG Y
: HEMENS G PEVED
: i = 40 HINOW 3HL H2NOHHL STvNLOY
enJgsy fJener 1aquiagag I2gWBACN 19G0J20 Jaquisydag Isnbny Ine 19010
HSVYD wucH (Z} Jea A 18Bpng - 19RYSHIOM MOLYSED funon euslg
0000000 L4104 LHOdad WP NI FL-EL0Z pajlup Tp sellnig-elss

.

S

e



WY 822 eLOZ/ZIEL ‘Pellld

HSVD Wiod

0000000 44304 7

-

-

z 40 T abed (eL0z/v1/80 A2} IUsed D)4
1'Z€102 - temyjog Bupodsy |ewuenld SOYS
uopeonp Jo 1daq BiLIoje)
Q0'6Z€'9E6 2 SLNAWLSNraY gNY STYNHOOY
' HSYD SN1d 'HSYY ONIAONT D
BO'0EG'EES'E 80 169E6E ¢ 80°L0G LIS B0FIE GRS C (3 + V) HSYD ONIONT "d
00BLZ 9E} ¢l 00'La.L'et. 000 00'66%'20¥ 0061 OF 100058 c2v) 00°296'152 (00261 €02} a+2-9)
ASYaYO3aQ/ASYIHON] L3N '3
00D o0og o0oc 00’0 [{i37] 00’0 000 SNOILOVYSNYH.L
i 133HS FONY1vE TV.LOL
c0'0 0Le6 Bupesiy ssuadsng
BUITEroaouoN
oo 000 000 000 000 00'0 000 SAILMGYIT 1YLCi8ans
000 0596 senuaAsy palajeg
00°0 0t96 SUBOT JUBLND
000 0L96 SpuUn4 BYi0Q o ang
000 8656-00586 siqeded sjunoooy
SSMITET]
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 S13SSY 1vLOLaNnS
000 OPEB $1888Y JUaLND JBYO
1000 0EE6 sainjpuadxa pledald
o000 0zZEB S8I01S
000 0IE6 SpUN4 JeyiQ Wol4 eng
000 6626-0026 S|{EAla0aY SIUN0D0Y
[i]i§i] 66161116 Ainseal] u| JoN yses
BES
SNOLLOYSNYYL 133HS JONY1vE 'd
00'Lirt'Ge0'y 00°LvP 589y 00'0 00’0 00°082 $95 CO0'6¥E 05 00 ¢ce 05 00'98L7Z1LY SLNINWISHNESIA TVLOL
000 669089, sasf) Bujpueuly 180 v
[EEACT] 00'EEZ'eR 00'EEEer 629.-009L NG SISISUBL] puUNpEy|
000 66L-0004 oBIng PYIo
G0°000° 12 0000012 00°L¥LE 00'GZL 00'v8L'1 GO'0SZ'L 66590009 Aepng fended
00'FZ€002 1 00 ¥IE00T | 00382 2v1 0009 Iv) 00'928'LG 00°'¥5L'S0L 6665-000 S90IMBS
00'v0E'L01 0UPOL LOL 00°GLLEL 00'0Zv € 00°0£8°S 006156 666¥-000% sayddng pue syoog
000292171 00'0r.L'eZL’} 00'698'2EL 00°¥9Z'86 0026896 00°809'66 666£-0008 sjauag safojdw]
00°905'009 008057009 00'9¥G7L9 00°862'¢5 000ir 15 00’681 'vE 666Z-0002 selejeg payIsselD
00062915 L 000620151 00°228°66) 00'906'e5) 00°0B0EYL 00'99¥ 9% 6661-0001 solejeg paledyIlan)
SLINIWISHNESIa 2
00'999'161 91 00'909 L LGV 000 00'66F 20 00'65+ 0. 00'66¥ 92 00612 209 00'¥€9'602 S1dIFD3H TWLOL
000 000 - 6466-0869 s80in0g Bunurulg B0 fIY
000 000 6268-0168 U] siajsuel] punyap)
00°066'G8) 00°066'G8) 00'0LY' 29 00'v92'L 0061571 00°26% 66.6-0068 anusAsy |80 JawiQ
00°'Z61'28 00°.6l'z8 00'vLB'CE 00°Z65'El 00'EL0ET B66G8-0088 anusady IS JBUI0
00°959'¢ES 00°959'2E5 00'9¥0'SE 00'5L8'v1 00°'S¥6'9} 6622-0019 aNUBARY |RI8P3S
[ 00’0 6608-0808 SpUNg ShO3UE}[BIS|IN
00'vrF PSP 00'vor ¥GY 2 00'vel’lel COOF0vLY 00°0 00'808'erS 6L08-0208 saxe ] Apedold
00°'6LE PEG EY 0D'6LE9GE | 00'SLBZLL 00'9EG PEL 000622 Q06LBSY 00°LLL'B0T 6108-010% Wswuooddy (ediauid
$90INOG LU ANUBASH/4407
51di13034 '8
80 1G5E6EC 80°106°218'C B0PIGESE ¢ 80°'999°00L°2 HEYD ONINNIDIE Y
, (BN Qo 1aug)
40 HINOW 3HL HONOWHL STIVNLOY
l3sang IvLOL susunsnipy S[ENIDOY sunp CI] 1udy yaey FEEICT)

{2) Jea\ 13bpng - 153USHIOM MOLUSED
LHOd3H W

Ly

‘NI 7L-EL0g
I

s

Aunon eualg
palur I SeLUn|d-eusIg

-



2013-14 First Interim

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified

General Fund

48 70177 0000000

Sierra County Multivear Projections Form MYP!
Unrestricted
Prajected Year % %
Totals Change 2014-13 Change 2015-16
Olyject (Form 011) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection {Cols. E-C/C) Projection
Description Codes {A) (B8) ) (D} (E)
{Emer projections for subsequent vears t and 2 in Colunns C and E;
current year - Column A - 1s extractad)
A REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
|. LCFF/Revenue Lumt Sources R010-8099 3,882,129.00 -1.84% 3.810.823.00 -2.42% 3,718.543.00
2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 475,00000 -3.26% 450.000.00 -3.00% 427.300.00
3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 63,365.00 -8.66% 57.875.00 0.00% 57.875.00
4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 160.309.00 3.23% 165 481,00 3.24% 165.881.00
3. Other Financimg Sources
a. Transfers in 8900-8929 236161900 -100.00% 0.00 0.00
b. Other Sources 8930-8979 467.745.00 -100.80% .00 0.00_
¢. Contributions 8980-8999 {23.615.00) -32.02% (17,417.00) (17.953.00)
6. Total (Sum Imes Al thru A3c) 5.259.094 00 -1507% 4.466.762.00 4.351.848.00
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
|. Certificated Salaries
a. Basc Saiaries 1.642.533.00 1.487.654.00
b. Step & Column Adjusiment 12.271.00 23.299.00
¢. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 32.850.00 0.00
d. Other Adjustments {300,000.00 (125 .000.00)
e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines Bla thru B1d) 1000-1999 1,642 533 00 -0.43%, 1,487 .634.00 -6.84% 1,385.953.00
2. Classified Salaries
a. Base Salaries 600.536.00 508.823.00
b. Step & Column Adjustiment 6,997.00 7,376.00
¢. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 11,290.09 : 0.00
d. Gther Adjustments {50,000.00
¢. Total Classified Salaries {Stn lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 600,536.00 -5.28% 568.823.00 1.30% $76,199.00
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,058,424.00 4.42% 1.105,177.00 1.62% 1,123.026.00
4. Books and Supplics 4000-499¢ 93,542.00 -5.60% 88.306.00 0.00% §8.306.00
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,319.063.00 -11.33% 1,169.574.00 0.00% 1,169,574.00
6. Capital Quilay 6000-6999 121.000.00 -82.64% 21.000.00 0.00% 21,000.00
7. Other Outgo {excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400749 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
8. Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (15,314,00} -13.06% {13.514.00) * 0.00% (13,314.00) *’
9. Other Financing Uses ’ o
a. Transters Out 7600-7629 80,968.00 2.80% 83,233.00 1.28% 84,299.00
b, Other Uses 7630-7699 9 0.00 00% 0.00
10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)
1. Total (Sum lines B thru B10) 900.752.00 4,510.453.00 4.435.043.00
€. NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN FUND BALANCE :
{Ling A6 minus line BI11) 358,342.00 {43.691.00 (85.193.00)
. FUND BALANCE B
I. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Fonm 011, ling Fle) 2453 364.00 2.811.706.00 2.768.G15.00
2. Ending Fund Balanree {Sunt lines C and D1) 2811706 00 2,768.015.00 2,684 820.00
3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 0113
a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 3.400.00 5.400.00 | 3,400.00
b. Restiicted 9740
c. Conmmitted
1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.06 0.00
2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d. Assigned 9780 259.193.00 366.412.00 1 155,889.00
e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
1. Reserve for Economic Uncertaintics 9789 520,868.00 520.778.00 325.780.00
2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 202824500 1,877.425.00 1,995,751.00
f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance :
(Line D3f must agree with line D2) 2.811.706.00 2.768.015.00 2,684,820.00

£ Dee. 20va MYP choded O 812314 gxpe

e ._\-Tro‘n&caﬂ CJQ" D\d\ﬂ'ﬂ-d- Cosv
| fore. G, C@Iwg

’gm%ra ms,ww

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2013.2.1
File: mypi (Rev 06/14/2013)

Page 1

S

Gy ©

o sz« Un resteicTed
fhgex O Rageichecl

WGl e dp  LNMegtT fee et

Printed: 12/12/2013 7:41 AM



2013-14 First interim

Sierra-Flumas Joint Unified General Fund 48 70177 0000000
Sierra County Multiyear Projections Form MYP!
Unrestricted
Projected Year Y ’ Yo
Totals Chanae 2014-13 Charge 201316
Obzect {Form 01]) {Cols. C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-C/C) Projection
| Description Codes {A) {B) (Cy (D) (E}
! E. AVAILABLE RESERVES :
1. General Fund
a. Stabilization Arranpements 9730 000 0.00 0.00
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 5789 520,868.00 520,778.00 525.780.00
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 2.028.245.00 1,877.425.00 | 1L999.751.00
(Enler other reserve projections in Colums C ad E Tor subsequent i
years | and 2: current year - Column A - is extracted)
2_8pecial Reserve Fund - Noneapital Quilay (Fund 17}
a_ Stabilization Arrangements 9730 4.00
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 .00
¢ Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 .00
3. Total Available Reserves {Sum lines Ela thoy E2c) 2.549.113.00 2.398.203.00 2.525.531.00

F. ASSUMPTIONS

Please provide below or on a separate attaclinent, the asswmptions used to determine the projections for the first and
sccond subsequent tiscal years. Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments
projected in lines Bid, B2d, and B10. For additional information. please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

2014-2015 reduce up to two certificared statt in and up to one classified FTE. To provide transportation at a saving ef $200,000. FY 20135-16 reduce one certificated staff.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2013.2.1
File: mypi (Rev 08/14/2013) Page 2 Printed: 12/12/2013 7:41 AM



2013-14 First Interim

Sierra-Flumas Joint Unified General Fund 48 70477 0000000
Sierra County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Restricted

Projected Year % %
Tortals Change 2014-13 Change 2015-14
Object {Form D11} {Cols C-ASA) Projection (Cols. E-C/C) Projection
Description Codes (A) (123 ) (D) {(E)

‘Enter projections for subsequent _\?c{.lrs I and 2 in Columns C and E;
current vear - Column A - is extracted)
A REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Spurces 3010-8099 0.00 0.00% 0.00 5 e~ 0.00% 0.00
2. Federal Revenues §100-8299 145.731.00 -13.28% 82.656.00 [ (A ) -0.77% $2.016.00
3. Orher State Revenues 8300-8599 205.572.00 -88.17% 2432200 | — 0.04% 24,332.00
4. (nher Local Revenues §600-8799 48.163.00 -37.43% 20.509.00 2.61% 21.044.00
5. Orher Financing Sources

a. Transfers In §900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

b Other Sources 8930-8979 ) 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% o600

¢. Contributions 8980-8999 25,619.08 -32.02% 17.417.00 3.08% 17,933.00
6. Tomal (Swm lines Al thru ASc) 425.085.00 -063.91% 144 934 .00 0.30% 14534300

B, EXPENDITURES AND QOTHER FINANCING USES
1. Certificaled Salaries

4. Base Salarics 38,649 .00 28.636.00
b. Step & Colunm Adjustment 37500 694 .00
¢. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 696.00 0.00
d. Other Adjustments {11,284.000] 0.00

¢. Totat Certificated Salaries (Sum Hnes Bla thrz B1d) 1000-1959 38,649.00 | g 28.636.00 i 242% 39.330.00
2. Classified Satarics

a. Base Salaries 53.623.00 31,683.00
b. Step & Columm Adjustment 18300 1,101.00
¢. Cost-af-Living Adjustment 416.00 0.00
d. Other Adjustments (22.741.00): 0.00
& Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 53,623.00 -40.92% 31,683.00 3.48% 32,784.00
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 27.292.00 -20.99% 21,563.00 | ey 3.75% 2237200
4. Books and Supglies 4000-4999 137.423.00 -87.93% ig99.00 {A' ) 5% 18.009.00 |
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-599% 69,573.00 -55.73% 30,800.00 ~ -3.99% 29.571.00
6. Capital Qutlay 6000-6999 124.791.00 -100.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
7. Other Qutge (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) T100-7299, 7400-7494 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
8. Othor Outpo - Transters of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 13,314.00 -13.06% 13.314.00 0.00% 13,314.00
S, Other Financing Uses
a. Transfers Ow 7600-7629 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00% 0.00 0.00
10, Other Adjustments {Explain in Scction F below} 0.00 |}
11, Total (Sum lincs B! thiu B10) 480.663.00 144 994 00 145,380.00
C. NET INCREASE {(DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE .
{Line A6 minus line Bi1) (61.580.00) {90.00
D. FUND BALANCE
1. Net Beginning Fund Balance {Form 011, line Fle) 61.580.00 0.00 {90.00)
2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 0.00 190.00)]} (125.00)
3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 011)
a. Nonspendable G710-9719
b. Restricted 9740
c. Committed
I. Stabilization Arrangements 9750
2. Other Commitments 9760
d. Assigned 49780
e. Unassigned/tnappropriated
1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 49789
2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

f. Total Components of Ending Fund Bulance

(Line D3 must agree with line D2)

@ ?educeé ’Re,\J@mM,md Erpenges by ﬁﬂg!gg{@“%& {"QW%%
Core ?fc%e‘ﬂm'% program N Q"”C{e—dll’) 13- (L '

Califarnia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2013.2.1
File: mypi (Rev 08/14/2013) Page 1 Printed: 12/12/2013 7:41 AM



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified

2013-14 First interim
General Fund

46 70177 0000000

Sierra County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Restricted
Projectled Year % Yo
Totals Change 201415 Change 2015-16
Object (Form O11) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-C/C) Projection
Description Codes {A) {B) (C) (D) (£)
=. AVAILABLE RESERVES %
‘ I. General Fund
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790
{Enter current year reserve projections in Colwmn A and other reserve
projections in Columns C and E for subsequent years 1 and 2)
2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Cutlay (Fund 17)
a. Stabilization Arrangeiments 9750
b. Reserve for Economie Uncertainties 9789
c_ Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

3 Total Available Reserves (Swin lines Ela thru E2¢}

F. ASSUMPTIONS

SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and
sccond subsequent fiscal years. Further. please include an explanation lor any significant expenditure adjustiments
projected in lines Bld, B2d, and B10. For additienal information, please refer to the Budgel Assumptions section of the

Certificated Salary: Local revenue from Feather River College to support new classes in fiscal vear 20122013, Certiticated 25 FTE transter to unrestricted. Classified Salary: Corvent vear staff
paid from EIA/EL carty aver resouces. ELA/EL positions reduced in 2014-2015.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Scftware - 20613.2.1
File: mypi (Rev 08/14/2013)

Page 2

Printed: 12/12/2013 7:41 AM



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified

2013-14 First Interim
General Fund

46 70177 0000000

Siarra County Multiyear Projections Form MYP{
Unrestricted/Restricted
Projected Year % %
Totals Change 2014-13 Chanae 208516
Object (Form O11) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection {Cols. E-C/C} Prajection
Description Codes (A) (B} () (D) (E}
‘Enter projections for subsequent vears | and 2 in Celumns C and E:
current year - Column A - is extracled)
A.REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
{. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 3.882.125.00 -1.84% 3.810.823.06 -2.42% 3.718.545.00
2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 620.731.00 -14.19% 532.656,00 -4.34% 509.516.00
3. Onher S1ate Revenues 8300-8599 268,937.00 -69 44% 82.197.00 001% §2.207.00
4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 208.472.00 -10.78% . 185.990.00 0.50% 186,925.00
5. Other Financing Sources
a. Transfers Tn 8900-8929 236.161.00 -100.00% 0.00 \ 0.00% 0.00
b, Other Sources 8930-8979 467.749.00 -100.00% 0.00 | 0.00% 0.00
c. Contnburions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
6. Total {Sum lines Al thru A3c) 79.00 -18.87% 4.611,666.00 -2.48% 4.497.193.00
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES :
1. Certificated Salaries
a. Base Salaries 1.681.182.00 | 1.516,290.00
b. Step & Celumn Adjustment 12,846.00 | 253,993 00
¢. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 33.346.00 0.00
d. Other Adjustments {211.284.00) 5 (125,000.00)
e. Total Certificated Salaries (Swm lines Bla thru Bld) 1000-1999 1.516.290.00 -6.66% 1.415.283.00
2. Classified Salaries .
a. Base Salaries 654.159.00 [ 600,506.00
b. Step & Column Adjustment 7.182.00 | 8.477.00
¢, Cost-of-Living Adjustment 11,906.00 [ 0.00
d. Other Adjustments (72,741.00 0.00
e. Total Classified Salaries {Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2959 634.159.00 -8.20% £00.306.00 1.41% 608.983.00
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,085,716.00 3.78% 1,126.740.00 1.66% 1.145,398.00
4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 250,965.00 -57.24% 107.304.00 -0.92% 106,315.00
3. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,388,636.00 -13.56% 1,200,374.00 -0.10% 1,199.145.00
6. Capital Qutlay £000-6999 243,791.00 -91.46% 21,000.60 0.00% 21,000.00
7. Other Qutge {excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499Y 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
8. Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
9. Other Financing Uses
a. Transfers Out 7600-7629 80.968.00 83,233.00 1.28% $4,299.00
b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
10. Other Adpustments 0.00 0.00
11. Total (Swn lines Bl thru B10} 387.417.00 4.655.447.00 -161% 4.580.423.00
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE
{Line A6 winus e BI1) 296,762.00 (43.781.00) {83,230.00}
D. FUND BALANCE
1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 011, Iine Fle) 2,514.944.00 2.811.706.00 2.767.925.00
2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1} 2.811,706.00 2,767,925.00 2,684,695.00
3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 011}
a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 3.400.00 3,400.00 3.400.00
b. Restricled 9740 0.00 0400 0.00
¢. Committed
1. $tabilization Arrangements 9756 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. Other Commitments G760 0.00 .00 0.00
d. Assigned 9780 259,193.00 | 366.412.00 155,889.00
¢. Unassigned/Unappropriated
I. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 520,868.00 320.778.00 323,780.00
2, Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 3.028.245.00 1,877.335.00 1.999,626.00
f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance
(Ling D3 must agree with ling D2) 2,811,706.00 2,767,925.00 2,684.695.00

Califernia Dept of Education
SAGCS Financial Reporting Software - 2013.2.1
File: mypi (Rev 08/14/2013)

Page 1

Printed: 12/12/2013 7:41 AM



2013-14 First interim
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified General Fund 48 701177 0000000
Sierra County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Unrestricted/Restricted

Projected Year % %
Totals Change 2014-13 Change 2015-16
Object {(Form 011} {Cols, C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-C/C) Projection
Deseription Codes {A) B) (C)

(D) (E}

lE. AVAILABLE RESERVES {Linrestricted except as noted)
I. General Fund

a. Stabilization Arrangainents 9758 0.00 [« 0.00 0.00
b. Reserve tor Economic Uncertainties 9789 520.868.00 [% 520,778.00 523,780.00
¢. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 2.028,243.00 1.877.425.00 1.599.751.00

d. Negative Restricted Ending Balances
{Negative resources 2000-9999) (Enter projections) 9797 0.00 0.00

2. §pecial Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 .00 0.00
: b. Reserve for Economic Uncertaintics 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00
i c. Unassigned/Unapprepriated 9790 (.00 0.00 0.00
: 3. Total Available Reserves - by Amount {Sum lines EI thru E2b) 3.549,113.00 2.398,203.00 2,525.531.00

Total Available Reserves - by Pergent {Ling E3 divided by Line Fic)
F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES

1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions

=

47.32%

For districts that serve as the administrative unit {ALi) of &
special education lacal plan area (SELPA):
a. Do you choose to exclude fiom the reserve calculation

the pass-through funds distributed ro SELPA members? Yes

b. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special

education pass-through funds:
1. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

2. Special education pass-through fimds
{Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-34%9 and 6300-6540.

objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections for
subsequent years | and 2 in Columns € and E)

. District ADA
Used to determine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d

[

337.22 348.57

{Column A: Form Al, Estimated P-2 ADA column, lines 1-4 and 22; enter projections)

B

Calculating the Reserves

a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line BI1) 5,387.417.00 4,655447.00 4.380.423.00
b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if Line Fla is No) 0.00 | 0.00 .00
: ¢. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses :
(Linc F3a plus line F3b) 5.387,417.00 4.655,447.00 4580423 00
d. Reserve Standard Percentage Level
{Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 10 for calculation details) 4% 4% 1%
e. Reserve Standard - By Percent {Line F3c¢ times F3d) 215.496.68 186.217.88 183,216.92
f. Reserve Standard - By Amount k
(Refer to Form GLCSE, Criterion 10 for calenlation details) 63.000.00 £3,000.00 63,000.00
& Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 215,496.68 186,217 88 183.216.92
h. Available Reserves (Line E3) Meet Reserve Standard (Line Flg) YES YES

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reperting Software - 2013.2.1
File: mypi (Rev 08/14/2013) Page 2 ) Prirted: 12/12/2G13 7:41 AM




#

«.

Piggyback Consent Form {“Consent Form”} to the
Education/State & Local Government Purchase Agreement
and
Professional Services Agreement
between
Glendale Unified School District and Apple Inc. {(“Apple”)

Name of Institution: | ¢ o 11mas Joint (Nl | Apple Inc.

Address: . U. BOX 1 Infinite Loop
109 Beckwi1th Road Cupertino, CA 95014

City, State, Zip: Lovalton CA 36118

Dear Purchaser,

After an initial review, we have determined that you do not have a contract with Apple; however, you are an eligible purchaser
under the Agreements identified below and attached to this Consent Form.

Name of Agreements Education/State & Local Government Purchase Agreement and Professional Services Agreement
Agreement Number Education/State & Local Government Purchase Agreement: 12987

Agreement Number Professional Services Agreement: 335142

Bid Number P-1313/14

Purchaser Sterra-Plumas Joint Unified Schogl Ristrict

Date of Agreements 10/31/13

Apple may process your current and future purchase orders under these Agreements, provided that you execute this Consent
Form. If for some reason the Agreements are not attached to this Consent Form, please immediately request them prior to
executing this Consent Form. Apple advises Purchaser to review all the terms and conditions of the Agreements prior to
executing this Consent Form.

By executing this Consent Form, Purchaser agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Agreements. Subject to the
total aggregate liability caps in the Education/State & Local Government Purchase Agreement and the Professional Services
Agreement, Purchaser agrees that you are responsible and liable for any purchases you make under the Agreements and for
any of your actions or inactions pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreements.

This Consent Form will terminate on the termination date of the Agreements. Apple may terminate this Consent Form without
cause upon thirty (30} days’ written notice to Purchaser. Apple also may terminate this Consent Form immediately upon
written notice to Purchaser, if Purchaser breaches any terms and conditions of the Agreements or this Consent Form.

Please complete and execute this Consent Form and fax the completed and executed Consent Form to Apple at 866-784-4004,
This Consent Form must be executed by an officer of your institution who is duly authotized to bind your institution to the
terms and conditions of these Agreements. Please note that if we do not receive this Consent Form, any pending purchase
order will not be processed,

if you have any questions or comments regarding this Consent Form, please email austincontracts@apple.com.
Regards,

Sales Contracts Management

Apple Inc.

PURCHASER

Authorized Signature

Superintendent of Schools

Title

Dr. Merrill M Grant
Name

January 14, 2014
Date

Piggyback Consent Form {11.01.13sr}



«.

Education/State & Local Government Purchase Agreement
This Education/State & Local Government Purchase Agreement is made between Apple tnc, a California corporation located

at 1 infinlte Loop, Cuperting, CA 95014 ("Apple*} and:
Institution Legal Name {"Purchaser?);

Glendale Unified School District

Institution DBA (if different from Legal Name):

Address: 223 North Jackson Street

City, 5T, Zip: Glendale, CA 91206

1. Deflnitions

A, “Agreement” means, collectively, this Education/State &
Local Government Purchase Agreement, any addenda or
amendments hereto that reference this Education Purchase
Agreermnent and that are mutually executed by the parties,
and any terms that are incorporated herein by specific
reference, excluding the terms of any purchase orders.

B. “Apple Products” mean Services, hardware and software
products manufactured, distributed or licensed under the
Apple brand name that Purchaser has paid to acquire or has

properly licensed from Apple for its own use, but excluding

thied party software and all other third party products.
Appie Product consisting of software is referred to as "Apple
Scftware”,

€, “Limited Warranty* means and Is limited to Apple's
standard limited warranty that is set forth in the
documentation that accompanies an  Apple Product
purchased under this Agreerment.

D. “Products” mean, collectively, Services, Apple Products
and other products that are soid or licensed by Apple to
Purchaser for Purchaser’s own use,

E. “Services” mean, collectively, the standard, price-listed
service, support and/or training products sold under the
Apple Inc. brand rame that Purchaser has paid 1o acquire,

2. Purchases from Apple

A. Limited Billing Service Account Apple will provide
Purchaser a limited billing service account to use when
placing service orders such as Customer Installable Parts
{CIPs} and mail-in or on-site repairs. Purchaser may be asked
to submit 3 purchase order when placing a service order.
Purchaser acknowledges that Apple does not provide
service CIP or repair pricing on an Apple price list; Apple wil
quote current pricing to Purchaser prior to processing any
purchase order, and Purchaser will have the option to either
accept or decline the quoted prices. In the event Purchaser
accepts the quoted pricing, Apple will process the purchase
order under the terms of this Agreement; should Purchaser
decline the quoted prices, Apple will not process the
purchase order,

B. Price. Prices shall be as set forth on the applicable Apple
price list in effect on the date Purchaser’s order is accepted
by Appie, Apple reserves the right to accept or decline any
order, In whole or In part. Apple may cancel any accepted
order prior to shipment. Unless Purchaser notifies Apple
otherwise, Apple may make partial shipments of Purchaser's
orders. Apple will not be llable for any fallure to ship
complete orders. Purchaser will be invoiced separately for
each partial shipment and will pay each invoice when due,
without regard to subsequent deliveries. Apple will allocate
its available inventory and make deliveries (including partial
shipmerts) in its sole discretion and without liability to
Purchaser. Prices include standard freight and insurance

using an Apple-selected carrier. AH applicable local sales or
use taxes, dutles and other impasts, if any, due on account
of purchases hereunder shall be paid by Purchaser, Proof of
tax exempt status must be on file at Apple’s Support Center
for any order to be treated as a tax-exempt transaction.

C. Dellvery. Title and rsk of toss to all Products wil pass to

Purchaser upon shipment from Apple's shipping location,
For Products shipped pursuant to Apple's standard

practices in ali but the last week of every Apple fiscal
quarter durlng the term of this Agreement, Apple will issue
credits or replace Products returned due to damage in
transit or that are lost in transit. For Products shipped
pursuant to Apple's stendard practices in the last week of
every Apple fiscal quarter during the term of the
Agreement, Apple will not issue credits or replace Products
returned due to damage in transit or that are lost in transit,
Instead, Apple will provide third-party insurance for
damaged or lest Products with Purchaser named as the loss
payee. When not shipping Products pursuant to Apple's
standard practices but instead shipping via a carrler
selected by Purchaser, Apple will not issue credits or replace
Products retumed due to damage in transit or that are lost
in transit. Shipping charges for orders that are shipped
under Purchaser's instructions will be added to Apple's
Invoice, or shipped freight collect, at Apple’s option,

D. Payment. Purchaser shall be invoiced upon shipment of
Products and, provided Purchaser is qualified for credit with
Apple, payment of such invoice will be due no later than
thirty {30) days from date of invoice. Apple will also charge
for any fees due from Purchaser by reguiation or statute,
Incdluding, i applicable, fees due under the Californta
Electronlc Waste Recycling Act or similar statutes in other
states, Apple reserves the right to ¢hange the Authorized
Apple Price Lists and Purchaser's cradit terms at any time. in
addition to Apple's other rights in this Agreement, Apple
reserves the right, without liabllity or obligation fo
P:;;hah:ser. to suspend deliveries in the event of a payment
defau

3. Limited Warranty

A. The sole warranty for and Apple Product purchased
hereunder shall be the Uimited Warmanty. Except for the
Limited Warranty, all Apple Products are sold “as is* and
without additional warranty or support from Apple.

B. All Products, other than Apple Products, are sold "as is”
and without warranty or support from Apple, but may be
accompanied by a manufecturer’s warranty, as more
particularly provided In the wamanty documentation that
accompardes such Products, Upon Purchaser's request,
Appile will provide a copy of any manufacturer's warranty
accompanying Products offered by Apple under this
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
a5 obligating Apple to provide any warranty-related
fulfiliment or support for any Products, cther than Apple
Products.

Apple Confidentlal

Page 1 of 3

101512 AE
Rev 03/10



C. EXCEPT FOR THE LIMITED WARRANTY, APPLE MAKES NO
WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT
TO THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES, AND TO THE MAXIMUM
EXTENT PROVIDED BY LAW, APPLE HEREBY DISCLAIMS
SUGH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS
‘FOR A PARTICULAR PURPQSE.

APPLE PRODUCTS ARE NOT INTENDED OR SUITABLE FOR
USE IN SITUATIONS OR ENVIRONMENTS WHERE THE
FAILURE OR TIME DELAYS OF, OR ERRORS OR
INACCURACIES iN, THE CONTENT, DATA OR INFORMATION
PROVIDED BY APPLE PRODUCTS COULD LEAD TO DEATH,
PERSONAL INJURY, OR SEVERE PHYSICAL OR
ENVIRONMENTAL  DAMAGE, INCLUDING WITHOUT
UMITATION THE OPERATION OF NUCLEAR FACILITIES,
AIRCRAFT NAVIGATION OR COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS,
AR TRAFFIC CONTROL, LIFE SUPPORT OR WEAPONS
SYSTEMS.

4. Proprietary Rights. Purchaser acknowledges that
Products often contain not only hardware but also software,
including but not limited te, operating systems and
applications, Such scftware may be included in ROMs or
other semiconductor chips embedded in hardware, or it
ray be contained separately on disks or on other media.
Such software is proprietary, is copyrighted, and may also
contain valuable trade secrats and s protected by patents.
Purchaser, as an end user, is licensed to use any software
contained .in such Products, subject to the terms of the
license accompanying the Products, if any, and the
applicable patent, trademark, copyright, and other
intellectual property, federal and state laws of the United
States. Unless Purchaser has obtained Apple's prior written
consent, Purchaser, in addition to any obfigations or
restrictions set forth in any license, which may accompany a
Product, shall not copy the software. Purchaser shall not
disassemble, decompile, reverse engineer, copy, modify,
create derivative works thereof or otherwise change any of
the software or its form,

5. Right of Defense.

A. Subject to the exceptions set forth below and Purchaser’s
compliance with the notice and defense conditions in
Section 5.B Gefow, Apple will defend any procesding or
action brought by a third party against Purchaser to the
extent based on a clalm that: {1} an Apple Product sold by
Apple that Purchaser has paid to acquire infiinges a U5,
patent, copyright, trademark or trade secret; or {2} personal
injury or tangible property damage suffered by such third
party was caused by Apple’s gross negligence or wiilful
misconduct duting the course of Apple's perforrmance of
Services. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Apple is
not liable for any claims or damages atlising out of or related
to: {a} any modification of any Apple Product{s}, (b} any
combination, operation or use of any Apple Product{s) with
non-Apple branded Products or other non-Apple-provided
programs, data or documentation, {c) Purchaser's violation
of any import or export control requirements, regufations,
and laws, (d} Purchaser's use or exportation of any Apple
Product{s) Into any countries identified on any US
Government embargoed countries list, (e) use of any Apple
Software in @ manner not authorized under the applicable
Apple end user license agreement {the “EULAY), or (f)
Purchaser’s, its employees or subcontractors’ negligence,
acts or omissions. Subject to the foregoing exceptions,
Apple’s obligation ta defend Purchaser against claims
covered by S.A{1) or 5A[2) above is contingent on
Purchaser's compliance with Section 5.8 below, THE
FOREGOING CONSTITUTES PURCHASER'S SOLE . AND

EXCILUSIVE REMEDY AND APPLE'S ENTIRE LIABILITY FOR ANY
CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT,

B. Notice and Defense Conditions. Purchaser shall
protnptly notify Apple, in wiiting, of any claim, demand,
proceeding or suit of which Purchaser becomes aware
which may give rise to a right of defense pursuant to this
section 5 {"Claim®), Notice of any Claim that is a legal
proceeding, by suit or otherwise, must be provided to
Apple within thirty {30) days of Purchaser’s first learning of
such proceeding. Notice must be in writing and inclutle an
offer ta tender the defense of the Claim to Apple. Apple, if it
accepts such tender, may take over sole control of the
defense of the Claim. That control includes the right to ke
any and all actions deemed appropriate by Apple to
completely and finally resolve the Claim by settlement or
compromise, Upon Apple's acceptance of tender, Purchaser
will cooperate with Apple with respect to such defense and
settlement. If a Claim Is settled and to the extent permitted
by law, both parties will not publicize the settlement and
will make every effort to ensure the settiement agreement
contains 3 non-disclosure provision.

C. In the event of any actual or potential Claim, Apple will
be entitied (but not obligated), at its sole option, to: {1}
procure for Purchaser the right to continue use of the
applicable Apple Product(s), (2} replace the applicable
Apple Product{s), (3} modify the applicable Apple
Product(s}), or {4) refund the amount pald by Purchaser to
Apple for the applicable Apple Product, less depreciation.

6. Limitation of Liabliitles and Remedies. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary, except to the extent prohibited by
applicable law, the maximum aggregate liability of Apple
for any and all daims and damages arising out of or related
to this Agreement, whether arising in contract, warranty,
tort, strict fiability, statute or otherwise, shall be limited to
three hundred thousand US. dollars {$300,000). 1N NO
EVENT SHALL APPLE BE UIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT DAMAGES
(INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, CLAIMS FOR LOST
BUSINESS PROFITS OR REVENUE, LOS5 OF DATA
INTERRUPTION IN USE, UNAVAILABILITY OF DATA, OR THE
COST OF THE PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOCDS OR
SERAVICES) OR FOR PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES,
WHETHER AS A RESULT OR BREACH OF CONTRALT,
WARRANTY, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, STATUTE OR
OTHERWISE. The remedies set forth in this Agreement shall
be Purchaser's sole and exclusive remedies for any and all
claims agalnst Apple, its agents and subcontractors in
connection with or related to this Agreement, The parties
further agree that the liability cap set forth herein shall not
be applied cumulatively or on a per claim basis and nething
shal be construed so as to enlarge that aggregate fimit. THE
PARTIES AGREE THAT THE ABOVE TERMS REPRESENT A FAIR
ALLOCATION OF RISK BETWEEN THE PARTIES

WITHOUT WHICH THEY WOULD NOT HAVE ENTERED INTO
THE AGREEMENT.

7. Yerm and Termination

A, Tetm; Termination, Unless terminated eartier as provided
in this Agreement, the initial term of this Agreement shall
be from the date Apple signs it until the following March
31; and unless either party provides written notice of non-
renewal to the other party not less than thirty (30) days
before the expiration of any then-current term, this
Agreement shall automatically renew for additional one (1)
year periods. Either party may terminate this Agreement
without cause upon thirty {30} days prior written notice,

Apple Confidential

Page2of 3

101512 AE
Rev 0310



Either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (36)°

days prior written notice if the other party is in material
breach of this Agreement and has fafled to cure such
hreach within thirty (30) days of the date of such notice.

B. Effect of Termination. The parties agree that upon any
notice of terminatlon of this Agreement: (i} the due date of
all Apple invoices shall be accelerated so that they become
immediately due and payable; i) Apple may refuse all or
part of any purchase orders received by Apple pursuant to
this Agreement after the date of rotice of termination; and
(iil) Purchaser will cease placing new orders.

C. Survival, All defined terms and the following provisions
siall survive any termination of this Agreement: Sections 1,
2.D,3-4,5(6,7B,7.Cand 8.

8, General

A, Governing Law. If Purchaser is a public institution or
agency, this Agreement will be governed and interpreted
under the faws of the state in which Purchaser is located. If
Purchaser is a private institution, this Agreement will be
govemed and interpreted under the laws of the State of
California, without regard to its conflict of laws provisions
{in the event that litigation commences, the parties agree
that the venue shall be Santa Clara County, Califarnia).

B, Severability. ¥ a court of competent jurisdiction holds
that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or
unenforceable, the remaining portions of this Agreement
will remain in fulf force and effect, and the parties witl
replace the invalid or unenforceable provision with a valid
and enforceable proviston that achieves the original intent
of the parties and economic effect of the Agreement.

C. Walvers. A pany’s waiver of any breach by the other
party or failure to enforce a remedy will not be considered a
waiver of subsequent breaches of the same or a different
kind.

D. Bxport Compliance, This Agreement is subject to all [aws,
regutations, order or other limitations on the export and re-
export of commodities, technical data and software.
Purchaser agrees that it will not export, re-export, reselt or
transfer any export controlled commodity, technical data or
software (1) in violation of such fimitations imposed by the
United States or any other appropriate nation government
authority, or (2} to any country for which an export license

or other governmental approval is required at the time of
export, without first obtaining ail necessary licenses or other
approvais, at Purchaser’s sole cost and expense.

E. Entire Agreement; Modifications. This Agreement
supersedes zli previous agreements and representations of,
between or on behalf of the parties concerning the subject
matter, This Agreement contains all of Apple's and
Purchaser's agreements, waranties, understandings,
conditions, covenants, and representations concerning the
subject matter. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency
between the terms of this Agreement and any EULA, the
terms of the EULA shall control solely as to the Appie
Software covered by that EULA. Neither Apple nor
Purchaser wilt be liable for any agreements, warranties,
understandings, conditions, covenants, or representations
not expressly set forth or referenced in this Agreement. Any
differant or additional, provisions in purchase orders,
invoices or similar documents issued by Purchaser at any
time are hereby deemed refused by Apple and such refused
provisions will be unenforceable. Except as otherwise
provided in this Agreement, no madification to this
Agreement will be binding unless in writing and signed by
an authorized representative of each party.

F. Counterprarts. This Agreement may be executed in one or
more counterparts (including by focsimile), each of which
when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and
shall have the same force and effect as an original but such
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same
instrument. !

G. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be lizble for any delay
or failure to meet its obligations (except for Purchaser's
payment obligations) under this Agreement due to
circumstances beyond its reasenable control, including but
not limited to war, riot, insurrection, civii commotion,
epidemics, labor strikes or lockouts, shortages, factory or
other labor conditions, fire, flood, earthquake or sterm.
Notwithstanding, this provision shall not be construed to
refleve Purchaser of its obligations to make payments to
Apple pursuant to this Agreement.

H. Authority. Purchaser represents and warrants that it has
all right, power and authority under applicable law to enter
into and perform this Agreement and that the person
signing below has the requisite legal authority to bind
Purchaser to the terms of this Agreement.’

The duly authorized representatives of the parties execute this Agreament as of the Effective Date.

Apple inc.

SIGNATURE: ] /é( ﬂ,w/'_{ Ang LA

. T
4

PRINT NAME: Eva Rae Lueck

PRINT NAME: A'/f\/’A I'L7/f1‘//

TME Chief Business & Financial

me (A, whsn At

Officer

OATE  October 25.-2013 DTy cRwrmpesT
EFFECINEDATE: /oy /27 /13
Apple Confidential Page 3 of3 101512 AE

Rev 03/10



&

®.

Amendment to the Education/State & Local Government Purchase Agreement

This Amendmant 1o the Education/State & Local Govemnment Purchase Agreement {("Amendment} modifies the Education/State &
i.ocal Government Purchase Agreement ("Agreement’, dated on or about October____, 2013 between Apple Inc, a Callfornla
corporation located at 1 infinite Loop, Cupertino, CA 95014 {"Apple™) and:

Company Name ["Purchaser): Glendale Unifled School District
Address: 223 North Jackson Street
City, ST, Zip: Glendaie, CA 91206

This Amendment entered into by the above-named parties amends the Agreement as follows:

1, Sectlon 1., “Definitlons”
The following Section 1.F, "Additional Eligible Purchasers,” is added to the Agreament:

*{1) Eligible Purchasers include Purchaser and any school districts and thelr publiic or private not-for-profit school systems, Boards
of Education, state unlversities and colleges, and community, vocational and technical colleges, state, county or clty agency or
department (inclyding fire departmenits and libraries), special district, port authority, municipality, township, or Indian
reservation in the State that Purchaser is located. Products purchased shall be for each of the Efigible Purchaser’s own use In its
facilities in the United States or in connection with educational purposes and shall not be purchased for the purpese of resale to
another antity or indlvidual. Apple reserves complete discretion in making eligibllity determinations.

{ii) The Purchaser shalf be respensible and be Hable only for purchases made directly by it on its own purchasa orders and shall
nat be llable for any purchases made by or acts of any other Ellgible Purchaser purchasing under this Agreement.”

2, Section 7.4, “Term and Termination”
Section 7.A, "Term and Tennination” is deleted in Its entirety and replaced with the following:

#7.A, Termy; Termination. Unless terminated earller as pravided in this Agreement, the initial temm of this Agreement shall be
from the date Apple slgns it untl! the following October 15, 2014; and unless elther party provides written notice of non-renewal
to the other party not [ess than thirty (30) days before the expiration of any then-current term, this Agreement may be renewed
by mutual written consent of the partles far four {4) additional one (V) year periods through October 15, 2018, Either party may
terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days prior written notice. Either party may terminate this Agreement
upon thirty (30) days prior weltten notice i the other party Is in material breach of this Agreement and has failed to cure such
breach within thirty (30) days of the date of such notice.”

Unless specificaly changed by this Amendment, the terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect and
apply to all fransactions contemplated by this Amendment. In the event of 2 conflict betwsen the provisions of the Agreement and
provisions of this Amendment, the pravisions of this Amendment will prevail. R

The duly authorlzed representatives of the parties execute this Amendment as qf the dates set forth below.

Purcl_laser Apple Inc,
SIGNATURE: / / : / SIGNATURE: /g st W o
Z ‘-
pnmmme:{a Rae Lueck rantnave XA d g pt

mme Chief Business & Financial me (37 LW A TT b

Fa Vol o]
VL LLIWLCTL

DATE Qctober 25, 2013 DEPT: Sales Contracts Management

EFFECTIVE DATE: /o /?,/, p
Il

Confidential : Page 1 Rev 9/08



«.

Apple Professional Services Agreement

This Apple Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement”) Is made between Apple inc, 3 California corporation located at 1 Infinite

Loop, Cupertino, CA 85014 ("Apple") and:

Company Name {"Customer®): Glendale Unified Schoel District

Address: 223 North Jackson Street

Clty, ST, Zips Glendale, CA 1206 .

1. Deflnitions Provided Customer is eligible for Apple‘s credit terms; fees and

A. "Agreerent” means collectively this Apple Professionat
Services Agreement, any exhibits, addendums, amendments or
additions, and any documents or materials incorporated by
reference.

B. *Confidential information” means confidential information
disclosed by either party to the other, Including but not limited
10 the terms and conditions of this Agreement, any non-public
infarmation refating to the other party’s research, development,
proprietary technology, product and marketing plans, finances,
personnel, business opportunities, and pricing, but not
including information that becomes public knowledge except
to the extent made public in violation of this Agreement.

C. “Services™ means the Informatlon technology consulting
services that Customer acquires fram Apple, as identified in 2
SOW.

D. "Statement of Work” or *SOW” means a uniquely numbered
document detalling the Services that Customer will acquire
from Apple, substamtially In the format attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

2. Services

A. Statement of Work

This Agreement shall serve as a master agreement for the
acgquisition of Services from Apple to Customer. It Is agreed that
when Services are to be performed, the parties shall prepare
and execute a SOW. All Services to be performed by Apple shali
- be documented Tn a SOW. Each SOW shali set forth, at a
minimum, a description of the Services, the duration of the
Services, and the fees for the Services, By referencing the
number and date of this Agreement, each 50W shall
incorporate all terms contained herein. Apple shail have the
right to accept or deciine any proposed SOW.

B. Delivery and Acceptance

Apple shall make reasonable efforts to provide Services orr a
timely basis, subject to availability of qualified personnef and
the difficulty and scope of the Services, However, Apple shall
not be liable for its failure to do so, nor will it be in breach of
this Agreement solely by reason of such failure. Apple may
reassign and substitute personne! at anytime and may provide
the same or similar Services to other customers. Services
supplied by Apple under this Agreement are provided to assist
Customer. Custorner, not Apple. will be responsible for
determining objectives. Services shail be deemed accepted, on
date of delivery or upon conclusion of any agreed acceptance
period stated In the SOW, 1f the Services substantially conform
1o their description,

3, Compensation

A, Fees and Expenses

In consideration of Services performed, Customer agrees to pay
Apple the fees and expenses specified In the applicable SOW. If
no fee Is specified, Customer agrees to pay Apples then current
fee rate for each hour of Service performed. Customer may
specify in each SOW art authorized iimit of fees and expenses
for which it shall pay for Services performed, and Apple agrees
not to incur additional fees and expenses beyond the limits
specified without prior written approval from Customer.

8. Invoicing

expenses shall be Involced after Services are performed on a
monthly basis unless otherwise specified in the SOW. Fees due
for fraction of hours shall be rounded up to the nearest whole
number, Any overdue amounts shall be subject to a finance
charge at the rate of 1.5% per month commencing on the date
such amount becomes overdue, or the highiest rate permitted
hy applicable law, whichever is Jower. Customer will pay any tax
Apple becomes chligated to pay by virtue of this Agreement
exclusive of taxes based on the net income of Apple. Payment
of fees and expenses shall be due thirty {30) days from date of
Apple's invoice,

4. Confidentiality. Néither party will use the other’s
Confidential Information except as required to achieve the
objectives of this Agreement, o7 will disclose such Confidential
Information except to employees, agents or contractors who
have a need o know or as required by law, Neither party will
make any disclosure or statement of Confidential Information in
connection with this Agreement or its subject matter without
the other's prior written consent or as required by law.,

5. Ownership, Any ideas, concepts, nventions, know-how,
data-processing techniques, software or documentation
developed by Apple parsonnel {alone or jointly with Customer)
in connection with Services provided to Customer {"Apple
Information™) will be the exclusive property of Appie, except to
the extent that such items are a derivative of Customer's
property. Apple grants Customer a non-exclusive, royaity-free,
non-transferable {without right ta sublicense) license to use the.
scftware or other proprietary rights In Services developed
under this Agresment Apple may provide Customer with
speciic, customized or unlque suggestions or Information as
part of the Services developed by Apple, which suggestions or
Information do not have application to other customers of
Apple {"Custorner-Owned Information"), Appie will identify all
Customer-Owned Information and furnish that informatlon to
Customer subject to the qualifications set forth in this
Agreement, and Customer will own all of Apple's right, title and
interest in the Customer-Owned information,

&. Warranty. Except as expressly represented otherwise in this
Agreement, and to the extent not prohibited by law, 2l Services
provided by or on behalf of Apple to Customer under this
Agreement are furnished on an "AS-IS" basls, without warranty
of any kind, whether express, impiled, statetory or otherwise
especially as to quallty, reliabliity, timeliness, usefulness,
sufficlency and accuracy. ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING
WITHOUT LIMITATION ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED BY APPLE. NO ORAL OR
WRITTEN ENFORMATION PROVIDED BY APPLE SHALL CREATE A
WARRANTY UNLESS INCORPORATED INTO THES AGREEMENT,

7. Limitation of Liabillty and Remedies. IN NO EVENT,
WHETHER AS A RESULT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY,
TORT, STRICT LABILITY, STATUTE OR OTHERWISE, SHALL EfTHER
PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE QTHER FOR ANY (ONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR INDIRECT DAMAGES (INCLUDING LOST
BUSINESS PROCFITS, LOSS OF DATA, INTERRUPTION IN USE QR
UNAVAILABILITY OF DATA) OR FOR PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY
DAMAGES, IN THE EVENT THAT APPLE SHALL FAIL TO PROVIDE
SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS AGREEMENT, APPLE'S

Coofidential

Page |

SCM Rev 06/04(C)



¢

«.

ENTIRE LIABILITY AND CUSTOMER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY SHALL
BE FOR APPLE TO USE S REASONABLE EFFORTS TO
REPERFORM THOSE SERVICES WITHIN A REASONABLE PERIOD
OF TIME; PROVIDED, THAT IN THE EVENT APPLE IS UNABLE TQ
CORRECT ANY DEFAULT OR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT BY IT,
APPLE MAY ELECT TO REFUND ALL PAYMENTS ACTUALLY
RECEWVED BY I FROM CUSTOMER FOR THE SERVICES IN
QUESTION, IN FULL SATISFACTION OF APPLE'S OBLIGATIONS
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, THE SAID REPERFORMANCE CR
REFUND SHALL .CONSTITUTE APPLE'S ENTIRE LIABLITY AND
CUSTOMER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR SUCH DEFAULT OR
BREACH. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AGGREGATE LIABILITY FOR
DAMAGES OF APPLE, ITS EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS, EXCEED THE
AMOUNTS CUSTOMER ACTUALLY PAID TO APPLE FOR THE
SERVICES AT {S5UE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. TO THE EXTENT
NOT PROHIBITED BY LAW, THE LIMITATIONS IN THIS SECTION
SHALL APPLY TO PERSONAL INJURY LIABILITY.

8. Indemnification, Apple will defend or settle any claim
against Customer that a Service delivered under this Agreement
{collectively referrad to as "Deliverzbles™) Infringes a United
States patent, utility model, industrial design, copyright, mask
work or trademark, provided Customer () promptly notifies
Apple in writing of the claim, and {ij) cooperates with Apple in
and grants Apple sole authority 1o control the defense and any
related settlement. Apple will pay the cost of such defense and
settiement and any casts and damages finally awarded against
Customer. if such a claim is made or appears likely to be made,
Apple may procure the right for Customer to continue using
the Deliverable(s), may modify the Deliverable(s), or may
replace it If a court enjoins use of the Deliverable(s) or Apple
determines that none of these alternatives Is reasonably
available, Apple will take back the Deliverable(s) and rafund its
value, Apple is not liable for any claim of infringement arising
from Apple’s compliance with any designs, spedifications or
Instructions of Customer, modification of the Deliverable(s} by
Customer or a third party, or use of the Deliverable(s} in a way
not specified by Apple. These terms state the entire liabllity of
Apple for claims of infringerment by Deliverables supplled by
Apple,

9. Term and Termination

A. Term

Unless terminated earlier as provided in this Agreement, the
inltlal term of this Agreement shall be from the date Apple
signs it unti] March 31, 2011; and unless either party provides
written notice to the contrary to the other party not less than
thirty {30} days before the exphation of any renewal term, this
Agreement shall be renewed for additlonat one {1) year periods.

B. Termination ’

{i} Termination of Agreement. Either party may terminate this
Agreement without cause upeon thirty (30) days prior written
notice, Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately
itv the event the other is in material breach of this Agreement,
In the event notice [s given terminating this Agreement, the
due date of ali Apple invoices shall be accelerated so that they
become due and payable as of the date of notice of
termination,

i Termination of a SOW. If Apple is not In default of any of its
obligations under a SOW, and the performance of Services &s
stopped through any wrongful act or neglect of Customer, or
Customer falls 1o make payment to Apple when due, Apple
may give written notice to Customer of 15 intent 1o terminate
performance under a SOW or 2 portion thereof, specifying the
grounds therecf, If the Customer falls within ten (10) days to
cure the act or neglect specified or to make the payment
identified therein as past due, Apple may then terminate
performance of Services and recover payment from the
Customer for all Services performed prior to the termination
date. The Customer may, for its sole convenlence, cancel a SOW
in whole or in part, by giving Apple ten {10} days written notice

of its intertion to do 5o, in the event of such canceltation, Apple
shall be entitled to recaver for all Services performed prior t
the effective termination, together with lts reascnable extra
costs incurred by reason of the canceflation, )

C. Termination for Cause

Either party may terminate a S0W Immediately If the other
party has (i) falled to cure any breach of this Agreement and/or
the SOW within thirty {30) days of written notice from the non-
breaching party, {ii} breached the terms of the section entitled
“Confidentlality”, or (iii) become insgivent, makes a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors or becomes subject to
any proceeding under any bankruptoy or insolvency law,

D. Survivorship

Those sections that by their nature survive expiration or
termination of this Agreement will survive expimtion or
termination. .

10, General

A. Gavernlng Law; Venue; Limttation of Clalms

This Agreement will be governed and Interpreted under the
laws of the State of Californla, without regard to Its conflict of
laws provisions. In the event of any dispute or controversy
between the partles to this Agreement, the parties shall try to -
resalve the dispute in g fair and reasonable way. To that end,
the parties shall first attempt to resclve such dispute or
comtroversy through one senior management member of each
party. [f the parties’ senior management members are unable to
resolve such dispute or confroversy within slxty {60) days after
the complaining party’s written notice to the other party of
such dispute or controversy, the partles shall further seek to
resolve the dispute or controversy pursuant to non-binding
mediation conducted in either 5anta Clara County or San
Francisco, California, Each party shall bear its own expenses in
connection with the mediation, except that Apple shall pay the
fees and expenses of the medlator. If the parties are unable to
resolve the dispute or controversy within shety {(60) days after
cormmendng mediation, either party. may ¢ormmence litigation
in the state or federal courts in Santa Clara County, California
{but only such courts), Notwithstanding the foregolng, each
party shall have the right to seek equitable relief in order to
protect any rights to confidentiallty or Intellectual property, The
parties hereby waive any bond requirements for obtaining
equitable relief, To the extent permitted by law, EACH PARTY
HERETQ HERERY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT OF TRIAL BY
JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM
{WHETHER OR NOT RELATING TO OR ARISING QUT OF THIS
AGREEMENT). ANY LITIGATION ARISING QUT QF ANY DISPUTE
OR CONTROVERSY BETWEEN THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT
MUST BE BROUGHT WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE FIRST
DATE 5UCH ACTION COULD HAVE BEEN BROUGHT. F A
LONGER PERIOD 1S PROWVIDED 8Y STATUTE, THE PARTIES
HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAWNVE T,

B. independent Contractor -
During performance of the Agreement, Apple shall be an
independent contractor and not an agent of the Customer,
Apple shali supervise the performance of its own services and
shatl have control of the manner and means by which the
Services are performed, subject to compliance with the
Agreement and any plans, specifications, schedules, or other
items agreed to in 2 SOW.

C, Non-Salicitation of Employees

During the term of this Agreement, and for one (1) year
thereafter, Customer shall not offer employment to, or employ,
an employee or contractor of Apple directly Involved in
Services, or induce such employee or contractor to breach any
employment agreement or services contract with Apple. This
restriction shall not apply to a Customer making offers of
employment through general public advertisements.

D. Publicity

Confidential

Page 2

SCM Rev 06/04(C)



”»

.

In connection with Apple's promotion of its professional
services, Including but not limited Yo, referential listings of
customers on Ks web site, Customer grants to Apple a
worldwide non-exclusive royalty free license to publicly use
Customer's name and trademark(s) In connection with
informing others of Customer's utillzation of such services.
Apple agrees 1o make reasonable efforts to adhere to any
trademark guldetines that Customer may wish Apple to adopt,
a5 delivered in writing to Apple from time to time.

E. Force Majeure

Nefther party shall be liable for any delay or failure to meet its
obligations under this Agreement cue to circumstances beyond
its reasonable control, including but not {imited to war, riot,
insurrection, civif commotion, labor strikes or Jockouts,
shortages, factory or other labor conditions, fire, flood,
earthquake or storm, :

F. Notices

Any notice under this Agreement, must be in writing and wili
be deemed given upon the earller of actual receipt or ten (10)
days after being sent by first class mall, returmn recelpt
regquested, 10 the address set forth below for Apple and to the
address designated on this Agreement by Customer for recalpt
of notices, or as may be provided by the parties.

Apple Inc.

Sales Contracts Management
1 infinite Loop, M/S 38-2CM
Cuperting, CA 95014

Either party may give notice of its change of address for receipt
of notices by giving notice in accordance with this section.

G. Assigniment

Apple may use subcontractors to pedform Services under this
Agreement, Customer may not assign this Agreement without
the written approval of Apple. Any attempt by Customer to
assign without Apple’s approval shall be deemed void,

H, Severablitty

f any provision of this Agreement should be held to be
unenforceable or invalid for any reason, such unenforceabitity
or invalidity shall not affect the enforceabllity or validity of the
remaining provisions, and the parties will substitute for such
provision an enforceable and valid provision, which most
closely approximates the Intent and economic effect of the
unenforceable or invalid provision.

l. Entire Agreement

Apple and Customer acknowledge that this Agreement and any
associated Statements of Work supersedes and extinguishes alf
previous agreements and representations of, between or on
behalf of the parties with respect to its subject matter, This
Agreement contalas all of Apple’s and Customer's agreements,
waranties, understandings, conditfons, covenants, and
representations with respect to its subject matter, Neither
Apple nor Customer will be liable for any agreements,
warranties, understandings, conditions, covenants, or
representations nat expressly set forth or referenced in this
Agreement. Apple Is deemed to have refused any different or
additional provisions in purchase orders, Invoices or similac
documents, unless Apple affirmatively accepts such provision In
writing, and such refused provisions will be unenforceable.

J. Modifications

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no
medification to this Agreement will be binding unless in writing
and signed by an authorized representative of each party.

¥, Customer’s Responsibflities and Representations

Custorner shall provide Apple equipment, information, and
facilities necessary to perform Services described in the SOW,
unless agreed otherwise by the parties.

. Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts
{including by facsimile}, each of which when so executed shall
be deemed to be an eriginal and shall have the same force and
effect as an originat but such counterpans together shall
constitute one and the same instrument,

The duly authorized representatives of the parties execute this Agreement as of the dates set forth below.

Customer, Apple Inc. .
— / , SIGNATURE: /d/zw A&/M
s 4
PRINTNAME Eva Rae Lueck PRINT NAME: J Aed Azt

TME Chief Business & Financial

TE (3 . LOWAAA B A prd St

Officer

DATE  (ctober 25, 2013 DEPT: Sales Contracts Management
EFFECTIVE DATE: 20 /f; / P
Confidential Page 3 SCM Rev 06/04(C)



C

.

Amendment to the Apple Professional Services Agreement

This Amendment to the Apple Professional Services Agreement ("Amendment”) modifies the Apple Professional Services Agreement
{"Agreement’), dated on or about October , 2013 between Apple Inc, a California corporation lecated at 1 Infinite Loop,
Cupertino, CA 95014 {"Apple"} and: :

Company Name ("Customer™): Glendale Unifled Schoof Distdict
Address: 223 North Jackson Street
Chty, ST, Zip: Glendate, CA_ 91206

This Amendment entered inte by the above-named partles smerxis the Agreement as follows:
1. Sectlon 1., “Definitions” '
The following Section 1.E, “Additiona! Eligible Purchasers,” is added 10 the Agreement:

() Ellgible Purchasers include Purchaser and any school districts and their public or private not-for-profit school systems, Boards
of Education, state universitles and colleges, and community, vocational and technical colleges, state, county ar city agency or
department (ncluding fire departments and libraries), special district, port authority, municipality, township, or Indian
raservation In the State that Purchaser ks located. Products and Services purchased shall be for each of the Eligible Purchaser's
own use in Its facifities In the United States or in connection with educational purposes and shall not be purchased for the
purpose of resale to another entity or Individual. Apple reserves complete discretion in making eligibllity determinations.

() The Purchaser shall be responsible and be liable only for purchases made directy by it on its own purchase orders and shall
not be llable for any purchases made by or acts of any other Eligible Purchaser purchasing under this Agreement.” :

2. Section 9.4, "Term and Yermination”
Saction 9.4, "Term and Tesmination® is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following;

*3 A. Term; Tetmination. Unless terminated eardier as provided in this Agreement, the inltial term of this Agreement shall be
from the date Apple signs it until the foflowing October 15, 2014; and unless elther party provides written notice of non-renewal
10 the other party not Jess than thirty (30) days before the expiration of any then-current term, this Agreement may be renewed
by mutual written consent of the partles for four {4) additional one (1) year periods through October 15, 2018. Fither party may
tetminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days prior wiitten notice, Either party may terminate this Agreemnent
upon thirty {30) days prior written notice if the other party Is In material breach of this Agreement and has failed to cure such
breach within thirty (30) days of the date of such notice.”

Unless specifically changed by this Amendment, the terms and conditlons of the Agreement remakn in full force and effect and
apply to all transactions contemplated by this Amendment. in the event of a confiict between the provisions of the Agreement and
provisions of this Amendment, the provisions of this Amendment will prevall.

The duly authorized representatives of the parties execute this Amendment as of the dates set forth below..

Customer, Apple Inc.

SIGNATURE; / Z/ SIGNATURE: 4"7&4 B Lefryr”

PRINT NAME: %e Lueck . PRNTNAME XV 7d A Zetrt

TME Chief Business & Financial ME </ Zxafhdery AT A5t

Utticer
DATE: October 25 . 2013 DEPT: Sales Contracts Management

EFFECTIVE DATE: /a/.:’f//?

Confidential Page | Rev 9/08



CRM GROUP

& CONSTRUCTION RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
D. KEVIN NOLEN
7385 PEMBROKE DR. RENO, NV 89502
TEL: 775-530-0303 KE UPCA.CO) E
Exhibit A-3

Contract for Professional Services

SCOPE

Provide Construction Management Services at Sierra-Plumas Unified School District for the
Project Design Development, Bid/LLB Contract Negotiations and Processes (Pre-Construction
Services) and Construction Document Review, Construction Site Management, Project
Budgets, Schedule Oversight, Project Closeout (Construction Services) for the LHS Paving
Project at Loyalton High School, Loyalton, Ca. Fee includes all services necessary for
management, development and oversight through closeout of all agencies, Contractor,
Inspector, Architect/Engineer of this project except Soil Engineering Services and Testing
(provided by others if necessary) as per the fee structure below. Also included is general
oversight of the LHS Track Project. Project based on the indicated time schedule. Fee
structure will begin as described below:

SCHEDULE OF FEES
Professional Services

Construction Costs (estimate only):......................ceenee..e.......$175,000.00

Construction Management:
Pre-Construction Services @ 4.0% .................................$7,000.00
Construction Services @ 4.0% (- Final).............................$5,600.00

TN

Fee Schedule:

Pre-Construction Services @ $1,750.00/mo...1/25/14 — 4/25/14
Construction Services @ $1,400.00/mo......... 5/25/14 — 8/25/14
Final Payment upon Completion.......$1,400.00

CRM Group / Construction Resource Management
7385 Pembroke Dr. Reno, NV 89502 / (775) 530-0303 /

E-mail: kevin/@crmgroupca.com


http:kevint(i)crmgroupca.com
http:5,600.00
http:7,000.00
http:175,000.00
http:KEVIN�CRMGROUPCA.COM

Contract For Professional Services (cont.):

Notes:
1.

This agreement is based on an estimated construction budget of $175,000 and actual
fees are subject to change according to changes to final scope, construction costs, time
extension to this agreement, or a budget increase.

Fee is based on: this Project (and the new Track) shall be designed, bid, and completed
on or before August, 31, 2013.

This fee does not include engineering or testing services (provided by Soils Engineer
and/or Asphalt Concrete testing).

Fees are subject to change according to delays beyond my control, final scope and
construction costs including economy-of-scale that may result in a much smaller project
and therefore, the possibility of a larger fee. Increases to the project construction costs
shall require increase to this agreement at current fee structure (percentage).

Invoices for services to be paid by the 25" of each month as billed for services.

Final Payment (10%) to be withheld until Notice of Completion is filed.

Approval: Acceptance for CRM Group:

By:

Title:

Title: & onER

Project Address: Date: ;/'%/!4

Date:

This cost estimate shall be valid for a period of 30 days after date of issue.

SPJUSD: Estimate for Construction Management Services @ Loyalton High School (Paving Project)

CRM Group / Construction Resource Management
7385 Pembroke Dr. Reno, NV 89502 / (775) 530-0303 /

E-mail: kevin@crmgroupca.com


http:kevin.iVcrrngroupca.com

	01_14_14_SPJUSD_AGENDA_PACKET.pdf
	Agenda_SPJUSD.pdf
	DEC2013repSPJUSD.pdf
	Enrollment.pdf
	Disc Statement.pdf
	12-10-13 SPJUSD MINUTES.pdf
	dec2013chksSPJUSD.pdf
	SPJUSD_Singleton Letter.pdf
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13_Audit.pdf
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 2
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 3
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 4
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 5
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 6
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 7
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 8
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 9
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 10
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 11
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 12
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 13
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 14
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 15
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 16
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 17
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 18
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 19
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 20
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 21
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 22
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 23
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 24
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 25
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 26
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 27
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 28
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 29
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 30
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 31
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 32
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 33
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 34
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 35
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 36
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 37
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 38
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 39
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 40
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 41
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 42
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 43
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 44
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 45
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 46
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 47
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 48
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 49
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 50
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 51
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 52
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 53
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 54
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 55
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 56
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 57
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 58
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 59
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 60
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 61
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 62
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 63
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 64
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 65
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 66
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 67
	SIERRAPLUMASRPT13: Page 68


	Dist Revised Multi Year Projection.pdf
	Piggyback Consent_Apple.pdf

	Exhibit A-3_LHS Paving Project_1 7 14.pdf

